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Financial highlights of the year

«  Order intake' ended at NOK 4 476 million (NOK 4,315 million), an increase of 3.7%.

«  Total revenuee and other operating income was NOK 4 487 million (MOK 4,268 million), an increase of 5.2%

+  Adjusted EBITDA" ended at NOK 793 million [NOK §21 millian], an increase of 27.7%

+  Adjusted EBITA! ended at MOK 870 million (MOK 420 million), an increase of 36.68%

= Adjusted EBIT" ended at MOK 548 million (MOE 354 million), an increase of 54.2%

Key figures

FIMANCIALS

Order intake'

Total revenue and other operating income
Adjusted EBITDA’

Adjusted EBITA'

Adjusted EBIT

Met profitfloss [-)

CASH FLOW

Met cash flow from operating activities

MARGIMNS & RATIOS
Adjusted EBITDA margin'
Adjusted EBITA margin'
Adjusted EBIT margin'
Het interest-bearing debt’

Leverage ratia’

' Piaase rafar to APM section far further axplanations and datails on AFM measures,

FARICIE
PARICIE
BARIOE
MAMOK
PAROK
PANOIE

PANOK

MK

(o

2024 2023
4,476 415
4,487 4,266
793 B21
670 490
546 354
B3 -74
G691 613
177 14.6
140 15 O
12.2 B Q)b‘

2,032 2&%
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Board of Directors Report 2024

GLX Holding AS" business

GLY Holding AS, “the company”,
was formed 14 August 2017 and
registered in the Register of
Business Enterprises, 7 September
2017,

The company's business is to awn
sharas in Glamex Group. The
company's ocperations are run from
the Oska municipality. On 1
December 2017, GLY Holding AS
became parent company of Glamos
Group with a 75.16% ownership.
Dwring the owner pariod GLX
Halding AS increased its ownership
in Glamox Group to 78175, Glamox
Group's registerad address is in
Molde, Norway, Headguarter |s
located in Oslo.

Glarmeox Graup is a Morwegian
industrial group that develops,
manufactures and distributes
professional smart lighting
solutions for the global market. Qur
mission is to provide sustalnable
lighting solutions that improwe the
performance and well-being of
people, We employ around 2,000
professionals, with sales and
production in Europe, Asla, and
Marth Amarica, In 2024, our annual
revenues were MOK 4 487 million.
The Glamax Group operates twa
segments - Professional Building
Solutions division (PES) and Marine,
Crfshore & Wind division (MOW].
Each of the two segments are
served by our Sourcing, Production
B Logistics division

(SPL), which operates factories and
plays @ significant role in the
procurament of componants and
delivery of finished goods.

The Professional Buildings
Solutions (PBS) divislon provides
indoor and outdoar lighting
solutions for non-residential
applications, The division 15 a
leading supplier to the professional
building markets, offering
complete product ranges Tor
educational and healthcare
facilities, commercial and industrial
buildimgs, retail facilities, hotels
and restaurants.,

Throwgh the range of quality
lighting brands, PBS create
comfortable, foxible and
stimulating working envircnments.
The praducts are engineered

for easy mounting, wss and
maintenance, with state-of-
tha-art elactronic components and
light sources for optimal energy
efficlency and a small
anviranmantal feotprint, As a local
partrier, PES provide tailored expert
advice and serve each customer to
meet thair individual needs.

The Marine, Offshare & Wind
(MW division provides lighting
salutions for maritime, wing and
anetgy applications. The division is
a leading supplier to the world's
marine and offshore markets,
including commercial maring
vessels, cruise ships, ferries,
defence and securily vessels,
fishing wessels, search and rescue
vessels, offshore and onshare
anargy installations = including
wind energy, petrochemical plants
and recreational boats,

Offering a strong giobal network
and a range of guality lighting

brands, MOW can meet all maritime
lighting requiremeants, including intericr
lighting, floodlights and searchlights,
explosion-proaf luminaires and
navigation lights. With the innovative
and energy efficient selutions for
extreme applications, MOW et the
standard for marine and offshare
lighting, As & local partner, MOW celiver
entra value throwgh the Knowledge of
the needs and preferences of each
Custamer,

For further infermation about Glamex
Group's operations, sea Glamox Group's
annual repart. The company doss not
awn shares in any other companies.

Going concern

In accordance with Section 3-3a of the
MNarwegian Accounting Act, of. § 4-5, the
Board of Directors confirms that the
Accounts have baen prepared on a

going concern basis and that this
assumption is appropriate at the date for
the accounts, and that GLY Holding AS
hias sufficient eguity and liguidity to fulfil
its obligations.

Statement of the financial statements
The company, based on non-
consclidated figures, reports an annual
lass of MOK 41 millon (loss of MOK 2
millian]. The campany's aquity capital per
31 December 2024, was MOK 1,398
million, 50.8% [NOK 1,435 million, 51.6%).

Total revenue and other up-eratlng
income was MOK 4,487 millian (NOK
4,266 milion), an increase of 5.2%.

EBITA in 2024 for the consalidat
accounts was MNOK 574 milliol‘%

[MOK 435 million], EBITA r%
K P
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negatively impacted by special
items in the magnitude of NOK 95
millicn (MoK 58 million). Spacial
items were mainly related to
initiatives suppofting growth,
restructurimg and efficiency
improvement. Furthermare, the
special items included an ERP
implementation cost, which

ig about 1o be finalised, and
acguisition and integration costs.

Restructuring, inbegratian,

and relocation activities were
embarked upon to further enhance
the long-tarm competitivenass af
the Glamaox Group and will have a
positive effect entering 2025 and
anwards.

Intangible resaurces such as
industry expertise, developmant of
technology and software as well as
brand recognition are important for
Glamaox to achieve the ambitious
plans set out in the strategic Graen
Light Plan.

The adjusted EBITA in 2024

was MOK 870 million (MOKAS0
millien), an increase of 36.8%, Tha
increase in adjusted EBITA was
largely a result of higher revenue,
in combination with cost savings
initiated during the year and over
previous years, somewhat offset
by inflationary pressures on

cost items. Revenue growth was
supparted by an increase in sales
af Light Managameant Systems
[LMAS), with the Group continuing
to benedit from the ongaing market
shift from the supply of lighting
products to lighting solutians,
Decreased depreciations,

amortisations, and impairments of
WK 255 millkon {270) positively
impacted adjusted operating profit,
The profit for the year in the
consalidated accounts was a profit
of MOK B3 million [loss MOK 74
million}.

The consolidated equity capital per
31 December 2024, was NOK 1,684
million, 29,8% (NOK 1,815 million,
29.8%).

Glamox Group directly expensed
NOK 68 million (MOK 54

million] related te research and
development activities and
capitalised MOK 5 million (MO 7
millizn) related to development
costin 2024,

Met change in cash and cash
aguivalents in 2024 was NOK

187 millicon (MOE 165 millien), &n
increase of NOK 22 million. Met
cash flows from operating
activities amounts to NOK 691
million {813 million). The increasa is
mainly explained by increased
aparating prafit, a favaurable
dewvelopment in trade payables, and
other operating changes, partially
offset by higher trade receivables
resulting from increased revenues
and higher taxes pald, Changes in
invantary wera stable.

MNet cash flow from investing
activithes was MNOK -118 million
[MIOK -52 million} while net cash
flow from financing activities

was MOK -386 millian (MOK -396
millian}.

The Board belisves the company’s

equity and liquidity as of 31
December 2024, 1o be satisfactory,

(o

In the cpinion of the Board, the
presented income statement and
balance shaet and accompanying
notes for the company and the
consolidated accounts provide a
satisfactory statement of earnings
in 2024 and the financial position at
year-end,

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed 10 credit risk,
interest risk, and exchange risk in
its day-ta-day business operations
and aims to kesp risk al an
acceptable level in these areas. The
underlying lean contracts ane
instrumental for managing interast
risk. Currency risk is managed
thraugh internal inveicing rules,
matching income against expeanses
in the same currency and loans
against equity in the same
currency, as well as the use of
financial instruments, Far further
details, see note 5.5 Financial risk
management in the annual
ACCOUNLE,

Development by segments
The Group has two segments -
Professional Building Salutions
(PES) and Marine, Offshore & Wind
(MOW]. They operate in
strategically different markets,
hava different sales channals,
marketing strategies and are
therefore subject to differant 1y
and magnitude of risk, The
Sourcing, Production & Logisti
(SPL) givision supports %QEE
hting

two segments.
n_

alket, with
al Europe as tha
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PES develops and supplies
complete lighting solutions for
educational and healthcare
institutions, offices, and industrial
buildings. PBS achieved an ordar
intake of MOK 3,055 million {3,148),
a decrease of 3.0%. Order activity
related to rencwation and retrofit
activity has shown good progress
during the year, whereas the new
build market is more constrained. In
the same period, total revenue was
MOK 3,116 millien (3171, a
decrease of 1.7%. The main growth
contributors were Finland, the
Matherlands, and Denmark
compared to 2023

EU investments in energy-efficiant
Bulldings, the shift from
conventional lighting 1a LED, and
thie growth in smart lighting
systems and services have all
supported PES market demand
related to renovation and retrofit
activity,

MON is responsible for developing,
salling and distributing sustainakle
lighting solutions to commercial
maring, offshore energy, offshare
wind and navy verticals. Its total
order intake improved by 21.7% to
MNOK 1,421 million {1,167, Customer
activity was driven by demand

for energy-efficlent lighting in

the Offshore Emergy, Commercial
Marine, Mawvy, and Offshare Wind
verticals, due to a combination

of retrofit and new build projects as
thie industries strive to comply with
Bmissiaon reduction targets,
Changes in geopaolitical tensions
affected demand in the Navy
vertical, and project tirming remains
inherently volatile.

Total revenue was MOK 1,371
millian 11,090, an increass of
25.8%. The Commarcial Maring,
Mawy, and Offshore Energy
verticals saw strong development,

Glamax AS acquired 100% of

the shares in MARL Intemational
Holdings Ltd, which fully owns
FARL International Ltd, The
acquisition was complated on 13
Auwgust 2024, MARL Internaticnal is
recogrised in the MOW division,

Proposal for allocation of profit
The Board of directors proposes
that the year = loss of GLY Holding
AS of NOK 41 millkan is allocated to
retainad earnings.

Corporate governance

The Board of directors considers
COTporate gQovernance to be a
prerequisite for leng-term value
creation and growth. The Board of
Directors has decided that the GLX
Holding A5 will comply with the
Morwegian Code of Practice for
Corporate Governance which is
available at www.nues.no). Furthear
information on GLX Haolding A%
COrpOrate Qovernance can be feaund
under “Investor Relations | GLX
Holding &5 on the Glamox Group
cofporate wabsite, Glamox Group
including subsidiaries carries
Director & Offlcers Insurance
provided by AIG, covering past,
present, and future Board members
ard company offlicers for personal
legal iability, including defense
costs,

Enwvironmental, Social and
Governance,

ESG considerations are

gaining significance amang our
stakeholders, and in 2024, the
Glamox Group intensified its focus
on ESG, It alms to be at the
forefront of the industry in this
regard, with its Sustainability report
forming an integral part of the
annual report.

The Glamox Group operales an

(o

established ESG programme

with a focus om compliance and
rigk management to pratect the
business value and align with ESG
market expectations for value
creation, 118 Code of Condust,
which acts as a moral compass

1o preserve integrity and promete
standards of acceptad business
ethics, is approved by the

Board, The Board has delegated
responsibility for managing the
company's sustainability efforts
10 the Group CEQ, The Glamox
Leadership Team is headed by the
Group CEQ and is responsible for
implemanting thase commitments
to policies and procedures. The
Head of Sustainabllity within

the Glamox Leadership Team is
respansiole for the ESG goals
embedded in the company strategy.

The Legal and Campliance
dapartment drafts policies and
procedures and has oversight of the
governance model and compliance
with legal requirements. In that
relation, a compliance management
syslem has been implemented, 11
ENCOMPasses various components,
Including values, corporate social
respansibility palicies, cods of
conduct, responsible business
partner policy, antl-caruption
policy, privacy policy, whistle-
blowing policy, crisis management
palicy, sanctions and expart contral
procedurs, and health, safety and
environmental (HSE] policy. This
system is continuously evalving and
forms & vital part of Glamox Group
operations,

©
¢
Dwring the reporting pericd, there n__) tb
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environmental footprint. Our
migsian |5 to provide sustainable
lighting solutions that improve the
performance and well-being of
peaple. To achieve cur ambition of
becoming a sustainability leadear, we
have integrated our sustainabillity
strategy into aur Glamos Graen
Light Strategic Aspirations Plan.

‘We are committed to assisting our
customers in reducing electricity
usage and carbon emissions
through our energy-efficiant
||Q|'ltll"lg products, control systems
and services. Owver 38% of our
lumninaires utilize energy-efficient
LED technaolegy, By simply replacing
comnventional luminaires with

our LED alternatives, electricity
consumplicn can be reduced by up
to 50%. This figure increases up to
0% when aur luminalres

are integrated with our light
management systems.

In addition, we embrace circular
econcmy design principles in

our product devedopment, which
extends the lifespan of our products
and enables us (o recycle materials
such as plastics and aluminium.

Glarmox Group publishes

a statemeant outlining our
expectations far suppliers, cur
Fuman rights due diligence, and our
risk management approach. This
statement is lssued In accordance
with the Morwegian Transparency
Act and is available at: https:iwaw.
glamox.com/fsustainability/polickes!

Responsible business partner
The Glamox Group is dedicated
to uphalding responsible business
practices and adnering to the
highest ethical standards in

all business operations. These
standards arg outlined in the
Glamox Code of Conduct,
supported by varous policies

and guidelines including the
Respansinle Business Partner Policy
and the anti-cerruption palicy.

The Procurement department is
responsitle for the day-to-day
managemant of human and labour
rights in the supply chain and for
maintaining & sustainable sauncing
cycle.

Wi communicate our expectations
regarding respect for human rights,
decent working conditions, and
athical business conduct to aur
suppliers. Utilising digital tools,
we transparently qualify and
manitor them, thereby promoting
transparency in the industry and
raising awareness globally, For
maore details on Glamox Group’s
initiatives in 2023, please refer

to the Sustainability section,
starting from page 10.

Responsible business partner The
Glarnox Group Is dedicated

Lo uphalding responsible business
practices and adhering to the
highest ethical standards in

all business operations. Thess
standards are outlined in the
Glamox Code ef Conduct,
supported by various policies

and guidelines including the
Responsible Business Partnar Palicy
and the anti-corrupticn palicy. The
Procurement department is
responsible for the day-to-day
management of human and labour
rights in the supply chain and for
maintaining & sustainable sourcing
cycle,

We communicate our expectations
regarding respect for human rights,
decent working conditions, and
ethical business conduct to our
suppliers. Uilising digital tools, we
transparenthy qualify and monitor
them, thereby promoting
transparency in the industry and

raising awareness globally, For
mare details on Glamox Groups
initiatives in 2024, please refer 1o
the Sustainability section.

Health and safety

The Glamaox Group is committed
te achieving zere accidents, and
its dedication 19 maintaining a

safe working environmant is an
ongaing effart. The business has
astablished a reporting procedure
that mandates the reporting,
investigation, and mitigation of

all lost time accidents. In 2024, a
total of 7 lost time accidents were
reported, resulting in an accident
ratio {H-valus) of 2.0 accidents per
1 million worked hours, an Increase
fram 1.8 in 2023

Equal opportunities and working
environment

The company has no employees,
The Board consists of three peapla,
twio men and cne woman. In 2024,
the average number of fulltime
amployes eguivalants (FTEs] in
Glamos Group stood at 2,036
representing a desraase from 2,086
in 2023

Glamos Group have conducted

& pay equality analysis for
employess in Glamos 45
(Vlikelannskartlegging”) in
compliance with the requirements
of the Equality of Opportunity and
Treatment Act (“Likestillings- og
diskrimineringsloven”), For details
an the sharahokder situation,
please refer to note 5.7 Equity and
shareholders in Glamox's annual b.‘%
acoounts. 43{:_') Cb
The Glamox Group is dadicata%t?‘-) rb
fostering am inclusive work gult b{lf
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based on their skills and abilities.
Theis Glarmnos Group strictly
prohibits any form of harassmeant
or discrimination based on

race, colour, religion, gender,
sexusl orientation, national
origin, age, disability, or veleran
status, a5 outlined inits Code of
Conduct and supparied by its
Whistleblawer palicy.

The policy ensures that equal
skills and length of sarvice

are rewarded regardless of
gender, Woman and men in all
job categories ara given equal
opportunities for assignments
and career advancameant. Al the
end of 2024, female employess
accounted for 4006% of the
Glamox Group's workforce, In
Glamox AS, 36.6% of employees
woere femnale, with women hokding
33.3% of leadership positions.
Additionally, #7.5% of pari-

time empleyess and 30.4% of
tempaorary hires in Glamox AS
were female,

Gender diversity is crecial,

and wehibe thi lighting industry
traditionally has been dominated
by men In sales and leadership
positions, Glamox Group wishes
to contribute to the positive
developments by targeting an

Oslo, 39 April 2025

-

Mikaed ara

Chairman of the Board

improvement in the ratio of men
and women in all parts of the
company. We therefore view

aur wirk in this area to have

a potential positive impact an
diversity and equal opportunity.
Wi strongly believe that a diverse
arganisation will be a swocessful
arganisation, and we focus on all
types of diversity.

Outlook

The Glamaox Groug's Tundamantal
growth prospects are positive
and based on a robust business
maodel, clear strategy, and positive
long-term market drivers in both
its aperating segrments, Growing
demand for energy-efficient
smart lighting solutions, driven

by increased focus on energy
savings and stricter environmeantal
regulations, along with
investments in offshore anargy,
nawy, and wind sectors, present
pramising leng-term growth
opportunities, both in new build,
remavation, and retrofit projects,

‘While near-term visibility is
somewhat uncertain dee to
macroaconomic factors and
shifting geopolitical conditions,
tha business remaing agile and
well-prepared to navigate these
challenges., However, these

Board meamber

i

Joachim Solbakken Espen

factors may impact the short/
rnediumm-tertn growth trajectory
and will be closely monitorad.

Daspite these risks, the Board
continues to believe that the
Glamox Group remains wedl-
positionad to capitalise on
growth opportunitizs through the
Implemantation of its Green Light
Strategy.

Declaration by the Board of
Directors

The Board of Directors of GLX
Hodding AS has today considered
and approved the Board of
Directors’ repart, including

the integrated Sustainability
report, and the audited Financial
Statements for GLXY Helding AS,

R

Hanna-Maria Helkkinen

%
Board member n_.?j ‘-btb
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Sustainability section statement

The sustainability section in this [GLX Holding's)
annual repaort is based on the activities and
performance of Its operating company, Glamaox
Group. As such, the content presanted reflects
the sustaimability efforts, initiatives, and

results of the Glamox Group, The sustainability
statement has been prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Corporate

Sustainability Reparting Directive (CSRD)
and the European Sustainability Reporting

-

Standards (ESRS), and outlines Glamax Group's

kay sustainability-related activities, mataria
topics, and impacts across its operations.
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GLY Holding AS - Group

Consolidated statement of profit and loss

For the years erded 31 Detember

NOK 1000 Motes 2024 2023
Ravarug 21,22 4 477 047 4 246 657
Other aperating incgme Z1 3713 19 172
Total revenua and other operating Incoms 4 4B TROD 4 265 839
Raw materials and corsumables used and changes of finkshed goods 1957031 1984 343
Payrall and related costs 24 1421 950 1331521
Depreciation and amartisation 31,33 42 247 ¥ 2665919
Impairment of nan-current asseis 1.2 4.2 ¥418 2363
Qther aperating axpenses 2,5 402 411 381075
Tatal operating expenses 4 036 100 3067 231
Qperating profit 450 GRO 258 588
Fimancial income 511 74391 54 663
Fimancial expenses .11 I50 445 348 GEO
Met financial items 276 0543 284017
Profit) loss before tax 174 &26 4 551
Income tax expense a1 H31oO81 TETIS
Profit)loss for the year B2 574 <74 144
Profityloss attributable to equety kalders of the parent 23 141 -0 3
Prafitfloss attributable te nen controlling nterests 53433 19 904
Eamings per ordinary share attributable to the equity halders of the parent 9,1 23,1 4.0

Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
Profit)loss for the year KX 574 -7 144

Itermes thie! subseguently will ot be rechassified o profit amd koss:

Gainflass from remessurement on defined benedit plans 7.2 1 ¥E -1% 145
Tax effect on remeasuraments on defined benefit plans a1 81 7 266
Tatal iteirrs that subsequiently will not be reclassilied te profit and hoss 1478 -12 879
Items thot subseguently moy be reciossified to profit end ipss:
Currency trarslation differences B4 474 141 002
Mak gaindloss on hedge of foreign subsidiaries 5.5 -Frar -127 350
T effiei From hadipe of foreign subsidiaries 6,1 16 964 28017
Tatal itemes that subseguently may be reclassified to profit and bass 24 X3 41 GES
Other comprehensive income for the period 25 ®&DE 28 790
Tatal comprehensive income far the period 1048 382 45 354
Tatal camprabensie incoma attributable to equity holiders of the parent 42 7498 -T3121
Tatal amprefensive income attributable o nen conrolBng inferests 65 584 26 76T



GLY Holding AS - Group

Consolidated statement of financial position

NOE 1000 L] ¥1.12.2024 31022028
MASSETS
Intangibde mon-turent assets
Goodwil 3.2 1934 433 1863 223
Intangible assets 3,3 1030836 10394 501
Total intangible non-current assets 2 945 265 2A5T Tia

Tangible non-current assefs

Lasdl, buildings &l ather praperty 31 206 516 200 575
Machireny and plant 3,1 51 850 74 462
Fistures and fittings, tooks, office squipment eto 11 28 344 a3 511
Raghi-al-usn assets 47 145 279 182 097
Taotal tangihle non-current assets 471 550 501 245
Ouferrad tax assats f,1 75 832 7 A7
Crthear nioey-currenit assets L0 304 10 676
Tatal noc-cunnent sssets 3523 445 HSan 412

Current assets

IrvwanEaries 2.3 TS TE4 176
Trade receivables 549 528 g81 4hE 879
Cribr receivaiiles 5.9 108 790 a9 691
Cagh aind cash equivalents 5.8 712 348 530 9
Taotal current assets 2127 539 1573 64b
TOTAL ASBETS 5 650 374 54713 058

EQUATY AMD LIABILITIES

Equity
Share capital 57 1 0oo 1000
Share premium reseres 1 5595 345 1539 346
Paid im capital 1 600 348 1600 346
Betained earnings and other ressrves 253 040 295 B3k
Man-cantraling intenesty 337 156 10 899
Tatal eguity 1684 462 1615 409

Nom-curnent labilities

Pereskon |ablites T2 34 340 369249
Band 51,5293 1336433 1330171
Intarest bearing liahilgias to finandal instiutions 51,5203 1157 799 1 145 537
Man-current lease abalities 4,2 52 826 130 BEE
Deferred can lighiBies 61 291 30 301 450
Provisions and other llabilzies 41 TL 836 3R 479
Total nor-current Kabilities 3025 130 2983 224

‘Current llabilities

Trade payables 5.10 358 g Bi0 221
Iecnimied: B oty f,1 S0 357 35098
Cither payable: &.10 14% pEa 122 503
Dividend - 13 109
Currenit lease babdlithes 4.2 ES 795 64 093
Provisions and other lishilties 41,51, 7.2 313 266 20 &
Tatal currant liakiliting 941 382 R4 435

Total lishilities 3 966 512 5 B07 Ga9 bg}
%)

TOTAL ECLITY AND LIABILITIES 5 650 574 5423058 63

Oslo, 29 April 2005 b‘ .

e Mo,  hoie 152
Mikael Ara Jaachim Solbakken Espan Hanna-Maria I-@h};b@q/

Chairman of the Board Board member Board me
oA
P
T



Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the years ended 31 December (NOE 10000

Cash flows from operating activities Mobas 2024 2023
Operating profit 450 680 188 598
Taxes paid =76 110 -68 450
Depreciation, amortisation and impairmient 3.1,33.42 254 708 270 287
Gain from sale of assets - -4 473
Changes in inventory 2.3 34 391 36 026G
Changes in trade receivable 5.9 -55 762 110 5820
Changes in trade payable 5.10 32521 54 117
Changes in pension scheme assets/liabilities 7.2 -k 0ad 16 143
Changes defined benefit plan recognised directhy in eguity 7.2 1396 -15 145
Changes in other assets and liabilities 51 363 24 401

Mt cash flows from operating activities 91 103 612 860

Cash flows from imvesting activities

Proceeds from sale of tangible fiked assets and intangible assets - 7 268
Purchase of tangible fixed assets and intangible assets 31,33 -5d 535 L2 B2
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 8.2 -53 464 -
Cash flow from [purchasa)/sales of shares in subsidiaries - B
Payment of contingent consideration 41 =10 036 5173
Met cash flow from investing activities -118 035 -51781
Cash flow from financing acthvities
Froceeds from issuance of debt 5.2 - 40000
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 5,2 - 1 350000
Refinancing fee paid 5.2 - =43 326
Lease princigal 432 -70 343 -G6 G76
Lease interest paid 43 -7 203 -6 456
Dividend pald to non controlling Interest -52 437 -35 753
Interests paid -319472 -395 211
Inberests received G 240 54 732
Repayment of interest bearing debt 5,2 3208 43 Ga4
Repayrment of bonds 5.2 - -1 350 000
Met cash flow from financing activities -386 423 -396 374
Met change In cash and cash eguivalents 186 645 164 705
Cash and cash aquivalents, beginning of period 5204900 327535
Effect of change in exchange rate 4 803 28 660
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 712 348 520 900

e 1 A guaramnt for the authenticity



GLY Holding A5 - Group

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Crrency Mat  Totalretained Tatal Men-
S Sh Ristained

ROK, D00 ':: ml; n:;m translaflan  imasteent  esenings nd  shansholdees  conbrolling  Total gty

-p P & d@Hemnces Fedpe resere obher mesenies eguiiy interesis
Balance as af 51 Deosmber 2033 1008 8 59036 EFEEFE ] 55 20 -1 728 -125 M8 15M &1 EEFL 1708624
frafit (loxs] for the yeme A K -0d (MK eI 19504 ETETT)
Rhir comprehanes |neami -0aid 107 395 -T9 &80 21927 H a7 AR 2B 700
Total cormgshirdve oo FLEE: L 107 335 75658 <72 121 ST21M 26767 45 354
Dividencs = -8 361 -8 361
Balance ax of §1 Decambar 2001 1000 1884 M6 147 068 1£2 €15 -111 12 -195 436 1 304 10 ArhReR 1615 a0
erofit (loss] for the year 25101 25141 141 Saass HEST
her comprahaniese incame 1125 &4 340 A5 &M L0 B5T 19 637 £ 151 25 A0E
Total S hifd vl o 14267 &4 340 45 209 43 798 421738 BESE4 10E 382
Dividends = 3537 -39 327
fislance ay of §1 Decembar 2034 1000 155849 -6 -idraz: 26 895 -1%7 190 -155 040 1 47 h AET 188 1 684 a2




1.1 Corporate information

GLY Holding AS was established in 2017, with the purpose to own shares in Glamox A5,

On 11 of December 2017, GLX Halding AS became the parent company of Glamox A5, GLX Holding AS owns 76.17% in Glamox A5, GLE
Holding AS is a halding company and have no other activities or investments than the owmership of Glamox A5, GLX Holding A5 is a
Morwegian company and the registered address is cfo Triton Sdvisors (Morway) A5, Kronprinsesse Mirthas plass 1, 0161 O5L0, The
ultirnate parent of GLY Hobding AS is Triten Fund IV, which is located at lersey. Beneficial owner of GLE Holding A5 is Triton fund M,
lacated at Jersey.

The Glamox Group consists of Glamaox A5 and its subsidiaries. 11 is an industrial group that develops, manufactures and distributes
professional iighting solutions for the global market. The Glamox Group consists of the two segments Professional Buslding Solutions
(PES] and "Maring, Offshore & Wind' {MOW]

. This file is sealed with a digital signature
i The seal is a guarantee for the authenticity
of the document.
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1.2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements which include Glamex A5 and all its subsidiaries, have bean prepared in accordanoe with IFRS #
Accounting Standards as adopted by The Ewropean Union (EL).

Material aocounting policies applied in the consalidated finandal statements are described in note 10.1. The policies ane applied
consistently to simalar transactions and to other events involving similar circomstances.

The consolidated Fnancial statements are presented in Norwegian kroner [NOR), which is alio the functional currency of the parent
carmparny. Al ligures are rounded 1o the nearest thausand (000), exeept when stherwise specilied.

Thie repart is isswed by the Board of Directors on 29 Apeid 2025 and will be approved by the Annual General Besating in May/Juna
2025,

. This file is sealed with a digital signature
i The seal is a guarantee for the authenticity
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1.3 Significant judgements and estimates

Judgernant |s applied In assessing how to account for soms business transactens and avents, This is typlcally related to:

Busingss - and product develogment progects which may introdwce complexity o assess how to accownt for costs during the project. The
nature of the praject will give guidance toeither capitalise or charge costs directly ever profit and loss, Only cost related to development of
products for a new application andfor with new technology are capitalised. Capitalisation is dependent of a confirmation of the projects
techinological and economic feasibility, usually when a development praject has reached a defined milestone.

Ulsefud fife of property, plant, eguipment and intangible aisets with effect on annual depreciations. The assessment is provided at least
annually, @ determined as the period over which the asset is expected ta be available for wse.

The following areas of accounting invohee a degree of estimation uncertainty and may result in variation in amounts. Estimation uncertainty
in these areas are partly refated to the sowrce s of uncertainty entified above and partly related to other sowrces of uncertainty discussed
in the individual notes,

Bevelapment projects

In determining the amounts to be capitalized, management makes estimates regarding the expacted futwre cash generation of the project,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits. Detalls related to capitalized product development are provided in note
F.3.

Progerty, plant end equipment
Uisaful life of progerty, plant and eguipment are provided in note 3.1,

Worranties

Provisions Tar warranty-related costs are recagnized when the product is sold to the customer. Initial recognition is based an histarical
exparience. Theinitial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually, Details related to warranty provisions are provided in nate
4.1,

Deferred tax pssets

Deferred tax assets are recognised when it is probable that the company will have a sufficient taxable profit in subsequent periods to utilize
the tax asset, Assessmaent af futura ability to utilize tax positions is based on estimates af the level of taxable profit, the expected timing of
utilization, rapectad termparary differences and strategies for tax planning, Details ralated treatment of tases are provided in note 6.1,

inwentony

A proyision for obsalence is included in the inventory when necessary. The criteria far assessing the needs and leval of the provision ane
based on objective cabtulations and management astimates, Depending on the turnower rate (3 months, b months or 12 months] the Group
has set specific obsolence rates 1o be used, Detalls are prowided inonate 2.3,

. This file is sealed with a digital signature
i The seal is a guarantee for the authenticity
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2.1 Segmant information

Operating segrments within the Glamaos Groug
Glamox has the falkowing cperating segments:
- Professianal Building Solubees (PRS]

Marires Offshore & Wind (RIW]

Tha segments offer diffarent products, aperate in strategicaly different markets and therefore have diffarent sales channeks and

mrarksting =rategies, including szsociated nsks, PBS provides products for offices, industry, health, sducation, retail, kotels and

FREtaurants, primandy in Eurape, NS main sales channels intlude dirsct-to-customer and whaleralers. MOW serves tha global markit
weith products for commercial manre, oll and gas {both offshare and onshore), navy, wind, cruise and femy sectors. MOWs customers
inchecks wessel caners, shipyands, alectrical installers, angineering Tirems and anengy Comganiag,

Tha performanca of these segmants i primardy ranitoned based an arders regeived and 1698l reverase, whilh 0parating expenses ar

ranaged at Groun el

The internal maragment reporting of operating segments does not include any Balanoe sheet ibems. Consequently, the cverdew of

firancial information per apersting segment does not indude sssets and Babilites

Mo single customer purchase soross segrments in 2024 exceeded 10 % of 1otal reverues

Professional  Mariee, Offihane
Year ended 31 December 2024 Building Schatiores & Wind Unallocated Total
Rewenue 1108935 13684071 4 47T 067
Oiher operating incom BT 13914 873
Tmulmmlngmm” 35132 453 3512453
ESIMA 574326
EBITA margin 135 %

Professional  Mariess, OdTsha i
Year anded 31 Degembar 20X Building ok & Wind Unalk 4 Tatal
Rewenue 3159 537 1087 119 4 146 557
Otheer opeErating income L1 b2z 3075 q473 19171
Total operating mxpermes ' 1831 076 3831 076
EEITA 434 753
EGITA margin L[ulrd
Reconcilation of profit ol 2025
EBITDA 05 3BE SaE HHEYS
Dapreciation, amanisation and imgal i 254 708 70287
450 6RO 58 598

Dparating prafinfloss

" Excluded amortisation and impakmant of iangble assets

He

signature

wuthenticity



2.2 Revenues from contracts with customers

The Group is a global provider of lighting selutions for a wide variety of applications both onshore and olfshare, All significant résenue sireams
refate W production and sakes of goods. Glamox's main perlarmance obligation is related 1o sabe of goods where the perlormance obiligations
are the delivery of an agreed volume of products within the agreed specification.

The accounting palicies for the group’s revenue from contracts with custosmers are explained in note 1001,

The Group’s revenue from contracts with customer has been disaggregated and presaented in the tables below:

Segment Information 2024 2023
Professional Buwilding Solutions [PRS) 3108 %95 3159537

Maring, Offshare & Wind {MOW) 1 368 071 1087 119

Taotal revenues from contracts with customers 4 477 DET 4 246 B57

Geagraphic information FBS DWW 2024
Morway 691 637 334 160 1025 797
Sweden 4B4 004 23562 507 566
Maordic Region ex. Norway and Sweden 420 040 TTa72 497 412
Germany 418 170 51105 469 275
Europe ex. Nordic Region and Germary 1073 661 410543 1434 509
Fest ol the warld 21 484 471024 492 S50B
Tatal revenies from contracts with customers 3 108 995 1368 071 4 477 067

Gaographic Information PFBS MOW 2023
Morway 6414 239643 L0057
Swaden 4 575 52917 523 492
Mordic Begion a4, Norway and Sweden 3E1 085S 51467 412 552
Garmany 4E49 280 52 aTS 522 055
Europs ex, Mordic Begion ard Germary 11549 311 287 205 1446 516
Rest of the warld 2873 403 212 431 985
Taotal revenues from contracts with customers 3159 537 1087119 4 246 657

The geagraphic split is based an the location of the customer.



2.3 Inventories

Inwantories 31,12, 2024 31.12.2023
Raw materials 410 306 426 621
Work in progress B0 B5E 71 658
Finished goods 286 BA6 285 896
Total inventories Fr el ] TEA1TE
Pravision for obsolate inventories 2024 2023
At January 1 71321 BE 513
Currency effect 3599 56380
Provision used 16423 =15 030
Prowvision reversed =T TS 2126
Additonal prowision 28 TAT 2 285
Business combinations 4214 -

At December 31 B3 783 71321

The provision for obsolete inventories covers all inventory dassifications (Raw material, Wark in progress and Finished goods). The
provision is primarily a consequence of the objective calculation based on stock turn at component kvl

MNote 5.7 chows that part of the Growp's inventory & pledged as security for secured liabilities.



2.4 Employee benefit expenses

Payrodl and related costs 2024 2023
Salaries 1142 699 1054 967
Mational insurance 1EE 154 177961
Pension costs 49 670 45934
Other remuneration 43 428 52 659
Taotal payroll and related costs 1421 950 1331521

2036 2 085

Averape numbes of Full Time Equivalents (FTE}

See mate 7.1 for management remuneration.




2,5 Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses 2024 2023
5ales and marketing expenses 26312 IR 291
Energy and housing 53 B84 67 262
Machines and equipment G6 385 L RS
Service fees and softwara 134 267 A7 538
Trawel and transport 49 647 43720
Claim, replacement and insurance expenses 34 291 29 BO9
Other 37624 54 133
Total other operating expenses 402 411 381075
Auditor

2024 2023
Fee for statutary audit B 242 Eg913
Audit-related foes 139 433
Tax compliance services b6 a6
Other fees 572 565
Tatal 75499 10872
Audit fee:

The amounts above are excleding VAT,



3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Fixtuwrgs and
Land/Buildings Machinery Fittings Tatal

Aggulsition cost 31.12.2022 311373 183 536 131 289 626 593
Additions 454 17 187 6 B2 24 362
Despoals -2251 -4 408 -2 051 -8 710
Reclassifications 29593 I 647 -5 540 -0
Currency translation effects 23 283 4 679 & 344 34 306
Arguisition cost 31.12.202% 335 852 204 042 136 563 676 456
Addetions B85 25 749 6129 32 562
Business combination 46 405 20017 B& 421
Dt proci alls 763 -3114 -1 3377 -3 728
Reclassilications 14 640 11336 -15 9377 -
Currency transkation eflects 1B 184 11 700 5 BAG 35 750
Acquisition cost 31.12.2024 370125 286 118 151 220 BO7 463
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment 31.12.2022 105 403 106 976 75 BST IHE 036
Deapreciation For the year 24 625 24 490 15498 E4 E1E
Impainment for the year 31065 - 103 3 168
Desposals - - - =
Currency transkation aflects 2181 -1 BR7 1594 1ERE
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 31.12.2023 135 278 129 579 93 052 357 09
Depreciation for the year 12942 21916 10 &23 55 B8]
Business combination 35 855 14 844 50 B9
Desposals - - - -
Currency trandation alfects 5390 6519 4 157 16 466
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 3112, 3024 163 610 194 268 122876 480 754
Carrying amount 31.12.2023 200 575 74 462 43 511 318 548
Carrying amount 31.13.2034 206 516 91 850 28 394 326 710

Fixtwres and

Lamd Busildings Machinery Fittings

Ll [l Indetinite Upg o Z0yrE. Upto 10yrs. Upte 10y,
Depreciation plan MNA Straight-line  Straight-line  Straight-lne

Thee Graup assess, at each reporting date, whether there s an indication that property, plant and equiprment may be impaired, Furthermore,
an assessment is made at each reporting date ta determine whather thers is an indicaticn that previcusly recagnized impairment losses ne

longer exist ar hawve decreased.

In 2023, the Group recorded an impairment of NOK 3.4 million related 1o Building and Fistures and fttings at the German prodwctian unit.
Mo other impairments were igentilied in 2024 or 2023 for property, plant and equipment.



3.2 Gaadwill

snndwill
dicquisition cost 3112, 5022 183469
Curreray Translation olfacts 16301
Aequikition sokl 31 12 0003 1863 2x3
Acquisitions 5b 208
Currercy translation effec 15 Mk
Aicquisition cost 5112, 5034 1934 a5k
Carrging smownd §1,12.2028 FETTFED]
Carrying amowd 31123024 1534433
Carrying of goodwil sl d ko nep 3112, 2004 EL 130T
Profassasnal Building Solution (PES) segmant 1458 a5 1446 B&5
Mading, Ofshore & Wind |MOW] gmen 475 747 416575
Tokal ill - ca AToang 1534 433 1863 237

The Grosg tests goodeil Tar impairment senually ar mare Trequesghy f there are indicabiens Tor imgairmants, Becogrzed gaadwll in the
o i of 51 December J024 s MOE 1,958 4 sl ben, The pacchel | is derveed Trom moaa s itian of Samas &5 n 3007 and subsegunt
acquisbezng of Kittel in 2008, Lusone s ES-System in J0080, LitelP, Wascs and Lousineld i 5021 and Ml in 30204

Baned an cord iPuing infegraben and synerpes aineis the acquired ¢ [ are b the fe segrments PRS s MOW

far imgmirment esting purpase. Ricaeirabile amaunts bame Bien detarsined hised on vabat-in-use Gilodatian e aach segmant,

The Gressg perfacs i annual mmparmec Bt at September B8R, There were na impament liides in 2004 e 023
Eay assumphions wied in vilus i use ciliulations

Thie histeracal sakis grasth fats i Glamds iMar B v i Bhi Do saimants, PES and MOW, in tha 200 gy @dan Dhe jiroat® rabis are
B an gublahed ind iy Feddba ik wilh inafage nest adpatints. Ths gronath rans sgplod i the m garnent bist s agiel 1 tha fate
llligiad in Ehie S1FEREgTy plan. Thie berminal growth Fate is assusieid 2% in Bath sagmants i 2004 and 2023

Groath rata

The historical saks growth rate in Glarman diTar Batwea n Thi ao sagmants, PES and MO, In tha S1rabigy gan the grosth rabes sre
Easid on publshed industry resea nch with managament adjpstmencs. Tha growth rate spplod in the impairment test is squal 1 the mae
wtilisesd in Ch Sirategy plan. Thie termieal growth rate is assusad 1% in Both segmants in 1024 and 2013,

EBITOW. margin
Fuluré operating gealit & dependant an a number of Gctors, bul prisa ly soluse grosth, cost ol grodugion and operating e pensas. In

thi impairmeant tast, Eamoe has estimated BRI mangin b o management's ciperiencs.

DiECouns rates

Thie discoun? rates an based on the Weighted Aserage Cost of Capital [WACC) Tormula dorived Trom the CEPM modal. Thi discount mata
s 564 individually for the twn sepmants, post-tas 10.0% tor PRS|2003: 10,5 %) and post-tan 10.5 % for AOW |2033: 10.0%). Fro-tax
GisEount rates are 13 3% [13.5%) and 13 5% (14.1%| for PES and MOW respectively.

Sensithvities
Th i i el Lests ana wansitive 1o several Racears, soech i changes in WACE, rewarmss gronsth and EEITDA mangies. Below are thise
Taaztars Isted with marging which masy result in i mpairesnt bcas stand alone

PBES RO
WALC Increases with more than: 1084-points 2%-paints
Feyenue growih decreases with each year more than: 13%-poinks 24%-paints
ERITDA margin decreases with sach year mone than; Fa-paints 15%-points
Basonabily possitle change in a key jan an which ma Fas Based s determination of the unit’s |group of unis')

FECCri i b T L e e Tt Cars thii Wni's (f roasp of a0} Caamying amow i 10 ot BE Piaconier bl aimio unt.

This file is sealed with a digital signature

pal is a guarantee for the authenticity

o

of the document



3.3 Product development and ather itltangiblt as561%

Other
Product  Teaserma ks CLiglamar intan gl
' Brands lati Tithaslogy assels® Tatal
Acquishion cost 3112, F02F 185 504 29441 410636 37 716 1B& 311 1724 653
LT ETEH &6l - - 2010 2E 611
Mispaaly - - 5002 -33227 -1 By -18 105
Currancy IFanslation eflics 4 776 TIEE 4530 3 98% 613 B0 753
Aiqulsifon toit J1.02. 5000 206 GEL 302 186 410 173 37478 207 G4 1763 663,
Sebdiveng 4533 - - - 17841 21973
Buaineas combi nabion - BEZY S50 12699 - a1 zey
Raclmsilieations - - - 53 -534 -
Currency iranslabion efects 3 B 5411 5 T1d 5 58T B3 21 344
Acguisihon cost 31.12.2024 215 513 F161TE 475 #n 56 Ans 2740811 1 B3E 5i8
[ lazes and i 51133083 115 232 2E81E ITT 185 14 408 ES 345 SE5 070
Armeortisation Tor Dy 31019 Ed1e 61648 AO23 5 645 135154
Dispaosals = - 5012 -332T7 -1 B 10105
Currancy Iranalaton el 1133 161l 2655 1 674 5 & 33
Accumulated amdertisation and spalment 31123023 158 53 ECFT) ALk 456 nars 114 753 Gl S8Rl
Aimortisation for the year 25 4T Dpaz 53619 BO2E 20353 123 p47
urrangy Ifindliton bty 1 R3d 2170 4 558 4 268 ] 14 633
Arcumulated svdetiEation and sgaimaent 20122024 187 163 51265 e E] EEREN 13543 a0y T
Carnying amount 31,13 3023 &E 35 36X au¥ T3 E17 16 599 aF Pad 1004 500
Cairring amaunt 31122024 IE 154 254913 5 r53 23130 B¥ 3T 1030 B35
Economic e 35 years Tl years and BT yoars 57 years  Up to B years
e erfimi by
Amortaetion plan Wiraight-kne Srppes-lre Sraght-ine  Streghi-lire Wiraight-ine

Met Caphtaiised dayalopment coats 35 of the year ended December 31, 20048 ware MOK 22 153 thoasand, internal progects that results s products with 3 rew applcation or
e techrclogy is capitaliesd gasen that the crbert in 185 38 = fulfillad, The Group dircty expeensed BOK 66 152 thousand mlsted to resesrch and development actritiesin

2034 | B020; MOK 55 578 thowsand]

Tradersark from e acquisition of Glases ard Bormel amounting 1o MOK 300, 00 chousand and MOK 19,770 teeusand respactively, ane well incorporatad Brands in thair
markets with no plans of ebranding Based on this, these teo rrademanks are assessed 1o be indefiniie and therefore not amomioed.

*Other intangible 2356is mainly coredst of capRalized soffware.




4.1 Provisions and other liabilities

Non-current prowisions and other liabilities Mote 31.12.3024 31172023
Warranties 25420 6 737
Oehier liabilities 14 g42 11748

Contingent cansiderations 31 Bas

Total nan-current prowisions and other llabillities 71526 28474
Pravision for warrantias 2024 2023
AL lanuary 1 26 7R 16 585

Currancy effect Tz 138

Provision used -1 672 £ 496

Prowision reversed -1 457 -1504

Additional provision 1119 7215

At Decembier 31 25 430 16 TIR

Current provisions and other liabilities Mote 31.12.2024 31122023
RestructuringfSeverance payment 19 DA 3894
Product claims & 7GR 9 510
Sum current provisions 15773 13 405
Prepayments from custamss 50248 35313
Cantirgent considerations 18571 19 0=l
Aexcruals for employes benefits 161 &%9 141 42

Penision labdities T2 1771 10587

Daher liakilities 45 K54 53 503
Sum cusrent ather llabilities 287 493 256 996
Total current provisions and other Eabilities F13 366 270401

Warranties relates to product warranty chligations to customers. Standard warranty time is between 2-5 years.

RBestructuringfseverance acoruals mainky relates to consolidston of production capacity aptimising resource utilisation by transferring
production from Kitkenmr in Horway ta Wilkasy in Peland and organisatianal changes outlined in our Fit far Grosth programme.

Product claims relates to concrete warranty cases, The provision is expected to cowver cost mveldved in rectifying received and potential
clalms,

The contingent considerations relates to earn-out agreements from acgquisitions of Luminell and Marl International. Tatal non-current
and current Contingent consideration amount to NOE 50 636 thausand, whene NOK 46 373 relates 10 the siquisition of MARL. Eann-gut
Foor War] Internatsans are baded on certdm performancs meaiored 1o be sthieved until 2026, I dur & guisitions, sam-oul agreements
are structured with amounts contingent an specific conditions. inane acguisition, a disagreement has arisen over the eame-out
caltulation, Discussicns ane angoing te resalve the matter withen the contractual framewark, The acorued earm-oul amdunt represents
our best pstimate.

Change in fair values is presented in et financial items at consolidated statement of profit and loss, see pote 5.11

Cither labilithes contain accrued fee and gereral accrued axpenses,



4.2 Leases

This meoie prowides informaiiee bor leases whens il Group & a ssaa.

Right:of.use asseis Fhefures and

Buildings Pachinery Fistirgs Total
Carrying amoast 21.12.2022 1595976 28 120 I 8z7 190523
Sidd i 5959 I8 119 853 13837
RETPalasura mont 19286 w7 51 20123
Depreciations a7 2135 17 155 1748 66 148
Tarrination e 1 =137
CuTEeCy traralation afeols 10 366 1 57 Loz 13029
Larrying amoaset 31.12.20F3 1ap 352 31 561 1883 182 657
hddiiom Taa 5012 FET 39 76
Busness combimation 12 313 143 13 356
rgaimment -7 515 - E -1 515
Rermearurement 1T 1153 7 -6 410
Beprecations -8 0 -1 -1 364 L
Termmation <23 -147 . -3n
urrency ireredation efiects aEED 1 AlE a 619
nrmng amesant §1.12,2074 110 36 33 858 1637 245 179
AmaoiEs recognised in prof and loss 2024 023
Dapréciation Tree right-ol-wie s AT 964 B5 14E
raprest sapenses from lease labibtes™ 7203 6 255
Exgmaniis relating 1o current ases and loies ol kee-value anits Tar FRLC ]
Total 77250 Ta Tl
I) Premmied oo Grprrciotis erd sovorfoofisos
) Frwmded m iernd aopetm
A) Premmided a Ot sperodep Lopatrs
Amoasnis recognised in cash Row 024 a3
P fual partion of lease payerents on Toann lakilitis" 0 3a% i &6
réerest portion of lease payments on lease babilites" 7203 6456
Payernbs relaling 10 guirenl eaged and bides of Ke-aslin asaita’ T 092 218
Total payments on lease liabilites 79637 TS RIS
IJ Prowmided' o ash Pow frone finarcing roiadfien.
2 Prrmmied m cash ow frove operetng ocfrat
Liasa labdlitees nze 023
Lease liakdl iies, non-osment At 326 130528
Liesasi liabilities, current B3 795 B41053
Mabarity schedule kease Nabilities - contractual undiscounted cash Tlows 1024 23
01 pears 032z 6h 408
1-Zwyears 75354 11paa3
4 years and later ZE LaB 32549
Tidal uilzcouniad leasa lallives o of 3112 174823 209 076

A pAEE AL AR AN depns RakETEs [or OueeRAT ERa ses s eose s O ose-wl e 05y




5.1 Financial instruments

The Graug has the Tolowing financial instrume nts:

Fingrcial eesets,Wobilives of omortised cost:

Financial assets: Trade recelvables, ather current recevables (notes: 5.9) and cash and cash aqurcalemts {rate 5.8]

Financial liabilities: Includes mest of the Group's Financial Babilities incuding debi to credit institutions, irade payables and other cunent and

nan-cunrent firdncl liakilities (notes: 5.2 and 5.10).

Finoncia! essersNobilites of fmr walue throwgh profit and koss (FETEL):

Cantingent conslderatians

Hedging

The: Graup applies hedge accounting related to its hedges of net meestments in foreign subsidiaries. Loans and bank overdrafts n the same
currgncy a5 the urderlying investments are designated as hedging irstruments. A5 of 21 Decembier 2024 NOE 792 miliiors of the interest
hearing Babilities have been designated as hadging instruement (2023 NOK 749 millicas), In the Graus accounts, The underkying cemency
effects related to the hedging mstruments sne presented in other comprebensse income, 1o the axtent that the hedgng relationship is
effective. At the end of the pericd, the hedging relatiorship is =ffective.

For furthar infarmation, see nate 5,5 and 10,1,

The tabls below shows the vanous finandal assets and labilties, grouped in the different categosies of financial instruments according to IFRS

9.

Fair walue thraugh

prafit and loss

31.12. 2024 Amartised oot [EVTRL) Tatal
Financial assets
Trade receivables [nete 5.9) S2EGRL 528 Ea1
Osher recetvables (note 5.9) 108 770 108 770
Cash and cash eguivalents {rake 5.8] 71F 348 712 345
Total finarclal assets 1345 200 1349 BOD
31.0F.2034 Tatal
Financial Liakilities
Band 1336433 1336433
Interest hearirg Fabilities wo finangial institutions note 5.2| 1197 799 1157 720
Lesse ligbilities {non-current and current, note 4.2} 162 621 162 621
Trade payvables {mote 5.10] 58 801 I5g pEl
Other pavabdes [note 510} 149083 148 023
Contingent considerations [note 4.1} 50 RIS 50 G636
Total financial liabilities 3204 817 50 630 3 255 453

Fair walue thraugh

prafit and loss

31.12.2003 Amartised cost [EVTPL) Takal
Financial assets
Trade recelvables [note 5.49) A6E 879 46 ATS
Deher recetvables (nobe 5.9) a9 631 9953l
Cash and cash aguivalents {rate 5.5) 520 Sy 5208900
Total tinancial assels 1089 470 . 1 089 470
31.12.2003 Tatal
Financial Liakilities
Band 1330171 1330171
Interest hearirg Fabilites te finandial institutions [Aote 52| 1145537 1145537 Q}
L likdlities (ran-current and current, nete 4.2} 124 760 194 760 Q)b‘
Trade payables note 5.10] 319 k21 319211 63
Oher payables [note 510} 133 503 122 503 {b
Lontingent considerations [ncte 4.1} 18 (121 lsw -rb
Total financial liabilities 3112 193 1% i 3181 &L

C;;Q(rﬁ: :

Yoo
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&
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5.2 Interest bearing liabilities

Man-Currant b Liaaring haads and borrawings Coampany I ikt rali Mlatiai 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Lallable Open Bond GLY Holding A% NIBOR + margin lirk) 1 350 000 1 550 000
Riewaking Tacilivy - utdisad amcaant [S0K| Glama A% HIBDR & madgin pinel = 410 500 410 500
Revakdng facility - ubdised amount (EUE] Glarmox A% EURIBOR + margin 006 7T 440 53 646
Rewakdng Tacilivy - utdisad amcant [FLN] Glamas A% WIBOR # margin e 414141 55 804
Arrangement fees -2 ETL -i% 352
LCRILS MAARL bvtainatianal Ll SOMLA + mangin 20326 3033 -

Tatal non-current interest bearing loans and bonrowings 2 5564 133 2 4TS TR
Change of cusront Interest baaring loans and borrowings 024 2023
{pening bakirce 2475 TOE 24%1 TR
Esua af naw bonds - 1 250 000
Repayment of bonds - -1 550 GO0
ncrease of utilisad amount (Revoliing facility] = 40 000
Business combinatins [ -

Repaymant -3 308 43 G834
Airrargement fee paid - 4% 136
amaisation of @rangement fee 12 4300 15 565
[#fect of changes in forsgn exchange rates a5 0 FE32
‘Clozing balance 1534137 2475 708

‘Callable Opan Bond

5L Holding AS i=sued 3 senior seoured sustainabilty linked bond on 23 February 2023, The initial issued amount is NOK 1,350 million and the mzximum
et & aunt al the Band s NOK 2,000 millan, The inital nemedl am cunl 6 each Bond B M0OE QS milion The bord Fas an inbenest marginal 6,75%
per a nnu. The INERREST paymant & in Feliruany, May, August and Decambss. This matunty date is 23.02.2027. The Outstanding Bands will mature in ful
an the Mabungy Date and shall be redesmed by the Issuer on the Maturdy Date at a price equal to 107% of the Homeral Amount.

A arrargainent fee of NOK 13,6 milkon milated to the rafinancing, is booked against the bond. The arangemant tee s expansad cver the aeailabdity
penod of the faciley.

Calabla Open Band - Incufrance test:
The “incurrence Test” is meet if (1) reo Event of Defauit s conbrwng or would result from the relesant event and (1| the Leverage Ratio falls below a certain

thereshalkd

The sharas in both GLY Helding AS and Glamsan A5 i pledged at socusity far the Borsd,

signature

he authenticity



Revolving facilizy

Glamas holds a midti-curency rewedying Faciity (sustarabilitg-Enked Tnanorg rameswork ], The molti-turrency révilvirg Faclity hads  credin limit of BOK
L&00m. An arrangernent fee of NOK 7.3 million related 1o the refinancing is booked aganst the debi. The arrangemsnt faa is sapansed ower the
aaailabelity period of the fadlity.

Rewvaking facility - Covinant ro guiraments:

Glamar' loan agreements imcludes the following franciad coswenants requirements on Glamos Group keel:
- Equity ratio minimom 15% until O3 3024, 17.5% until O3 D025 and 206 gnwands,

- Lawaragn ratio, net interest Baaring debd [MIBD|[JERITDA Adjusiad |Last Twelva Bosihs], ks than 4.0,

There hayve Bestn ra breaches of cowenants i M or 2023, Leversge rafioend of 2004 15 0.9 {2023: 1.4} and equity rate end of 2024 = 25% [2023- 22%).
Cakulation is based on Glamox Growg figuees in accondan s with Revabedng Tacilig agreamans.

Rewvaking facility - assets plodgad as security and antes liabilitias

31122029 31.12.2023

Sacuried balance shaat Rabilithes:
Irterest bearing Bakilites to finandal mstitutsns 2531 o 2475
Sacuned peraian Eability 13 050 11341

Balance skt vadue of assets pledged a security for secured liabilivies:

Land, buildings and othesr property 15 7% 14732
Machinery and plant 38317 354
Fiwtures and fittings, took, office eguipment =tc 6034 & 626
Irrvaniorins 1B5 021 T34 007
Trade recervable 442 1 313614
Total BAE1 430 553 342

This file is sealed with a digital signature
i The seal is a guarantee for the authenticity

of the document



5.3 Maturity analysis of financial liabilities

Less than 12
31.12.2024 months 1to3years Ower 3 years Total
Callable Open Bond® 154 178 1542375 - 1696 653
Irterest bearing labdlities to financial Institutions [note 5.2)° 54093 1256 582 1350675
Lease liahilities {non-current and current, note 4.2 T 3122 76154 28148 174 813
Trade payables (note 5.10) 358 BB1 358 8Bl
Cther payables (nate 5,140 149082 145083
Cantingent considerations [nate 4,1} 18571 11 GBS S0 636
Tatal financial liabilities 845 628 2906 575 28 148 3 780 750

Loss than 12
31.12.2023 months 1to 3 years  Ower 3 years Total
Callable Open Bond* 155 115 300 230 1372836 1838 181
Interest bearing liabilities to financial institutions [note 5.2 51220 1303 432 1394 653
Lease liabilities (ron-current and current, note 4.2)* 66 408 110018 32649 209076
Trade payabdes {nota 5.10) 319 221 315221
COther payables [nate 5.10] 122501 122503
Contingent considerations (note 4.1) 17 454 1617 19 081
Total financial liabilities 771533 1725 304 1406 486 31902 716

*  Figures induded ectimated interest payable,



5.4 Fair value measurement

Thie tabde bel ow dischoses information about all financial instruments that ane either measured at fair value or where Infarmation about fair value &
disclosed. There were no transfers between the levels during 2024 and 2023, Far related acoounting palicies, reference is made to note 1001

Carrying amount Date of Carrying
L wvaluation amout Fair vidue  Level 1 Lewnl 2 Ll 3

Liabilitias measuraddisclosed at fair value

Inberest-beanng loans and bormosings A1.12 3029 31122029 1 15T Tea 114F Faa K

I Dearing loans and b ings 31122023 a3 1145537 1145 537 ]

Callable Open Bord 1122024 Flaz.z202a 1336 43% 1 3497 ¥50 =

Callakike Dpen Bored %1.12.2023 31,12,20231 1330171 1 345 563 '

Comingent forsideration ¥1.12.2024 Fliz.z0za 50 636 50636 L]

Contingent corcideration 31.12.2023 31.12.2023 15081 13081 K

A arrangement fee of HOK 136 milion relatsd to the Callable Open Bond, is bocked agesret the bord. interest-bearing lisbibties sl mcludes
arrangarrenl Fees al NOK 7.3 millan related ta the revaling credt Taclity, which is boaked against the liabilties, The aiargement fees and expensad geer
the avallability period of the facllity.

Fair value of firamial instruments
Managernant assesiad that the Tair walues of ash and shart-tesm deposits, trade raceivahles, trade pavables and other current Balslitss apanosimats
thedr carmying amaunts langaly due 1o the shart-termn matunizies af these Instrumsnts.

The fair value of the firencial assets and liabilities is inchuded at the amount at whech the irstrument cowld be exchanged in a current transaction betesessn
willing parties, cther than i » farced or liquidation sale, The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The Group enters o dervatie financial instruments with various countarparties, principaly financial instituthons with investment grade credit ratings
Forsard contracts are walued using valuation technigues, which employ the use of market observabbe inputs. The mast frequently apolied waluatian
technigues include farsard pricing maodels using present value mlculations (hierarchy level 2). The models incorporate warious inputs including the credit
quality of courderpartes, fareign exchanges spot and Torward rates, yield curnes of the respescbve arencies ard currency basis spreads B=tween the
respective currendies, All derivative contracts s Pully cash collateralised, thenebny eliminating Both counterpaty risk and the Group's awn ner-
parformantg risk. The changes in courterparty oned risk had no matesial effect an the maasurament of financial instruments recognized a1 Fair value. The
Graup applies inpat fram it respectsve bank relatians in performing the far value cakzulations.

The fair walue of the Group's inferest-bearing labality is assessed fo ke in all matesial aspects similar to carrying amount.

Fair walus of the Callable Opsin Bond is caloulated By using the Osle Stock Excharge trading price af vear-end and exgludes carrying amaunt of
aangament fees,
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5.5 Financial risk management

The Graiip is exposad 10 a rangs af rsks alfecting its financial perlamnares, cuimncy ik, @Marest rate sk, gudity ik and credin sk, The Group weks to
minimise potential adverse effects of such risks through sound business practices, rek management and use of financial instrements. Bsk management =
carried aut by seniar management under policies approsed Ery the Bosnd of Dinectars

Interesy rate risk

The Group akms 1o folow the peneral long-term develcpenent In the: morey market inberest levels. The effects of shom-term fluctuations in money market
witerest bewels can be reduced by managing the loan portfolo’s e rage mterest and the Biming of the interest payments,

The main part of the depasit s arganised ina kit Curren oy Cash pool. The inberest: bearning lability nelates to a Revalwing Credit Faciling (ACF|. As of 31122024
WOK 41005 millions, EUR 320 millians ard FLN 15000 milkors of the BCF i utilmed

The interess af the utibed ameart of the BCF is payable 3t 2 rete of RIBORFEURIBOSAWIBOR plus 2 margin, dependent on Glamaoe's MIBDYERITDA ratio,

The foliowing Eable demonstrates the ssnshvity to a possible changs in interest rates, with all cther varables beld constant, on the Group's profit before tas:

Inberest rate sensithity Imcrease | decreass in basks points Effect on profit before tax
3112204 - 100 - 186 mNOE §+18 6 mMCE
31.12. 7033 wf- 100 - 20 mNOE § 3000 bR
Forelgn currency risk

Thee Group is exposed 10 trarsaction sk by purchasing and selling in dilferent currencies, Purchase and production eapenses are mainky in WOK, SEK, FUR, GEP
and FLN, with sales mairdy im NOE, EUR, SEK, DKK, GBF, 5G0, CAD, CHF. FLN and USE. Glamox aims to merimése the risk of changes in the value of net cash flows
ariging fram the shor-term Mucheations o exchange rates. Transaction sk & contrelled By means al internal iswcicing ndes, matching of incame srd expenses
in the same currency and by using financial insbruments [foreard contracts).

Az of 31 December 2024, the Group holds ne farsand cumency Contracts
Tre Graup i exposad 1o currancy Changes ralataid 1o camying smaunts of equity im farsign subsidianies. Changss in the valuss of agudty of foresgn subisidianas am

affs=tihedged by loans and o irafts in the same currercy. The followrg tables demonsirates the Group's tokal exposure to foreipgn curency nzk related to &3
net dabt and aguity in lorekgn subsidianas:

Met debd and bank owerdraftfdeposits in

Exguiity i foreige subsidiar toreign ¥
£ ¥ lis curreney millken] 31123024 3112503 331920024 $1.12.302%
T 15,3 BT (k] &3
SEK 735 3.1 05 =;E
GEP 232 153 195 151
CHF 113 134 157 13.0
BLH 1696 1955 1416 183
360 EE] 13 36 iz
A0 71 55 53 54
LSDFCHY 7. 57 &7 31

Hedging Instrument consist of drawdosn of Revohwing Credit Fadlity |RCF) of EUR 32,0 milkon and PLM 150.1 milon as well as bank aocounts for Glamox &5 in
the multi-currerey Facility, Met genloss om hadgings instruments in 2024 senaunts to NOK 77,2 millons (2023 WOK -132.9 milions), of which the sfTective
portion of the hedge of NOK -77.1 millions (2023: MOK -127.4 milions) are presented in cther comprehenshes Income.

Without the hedge of the net investmant in foreign subsidianies, a 10% weakening/strengthening in the value of NOK would have increased)decreasad equity
by WK 161.5 million a2 of 31 December 2024, where sguity in EUR represents MOK 41.5 million of this increasefdecresse, Such changes invalue would bave
limited impact an consofidated statansst of Profit and Loss, as they are mainly booked a5 translation oiffarencs against aquity.
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Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Growp will not be abie to meet igs financial chiigations as they fall due. Vielatie commodity prices and escharge rates as well o

Tugtuating Business splumsss and irsentory lesnls s Glames's epseations can have b substantial effest e the Groug's cash pesitians ard Barrowing
regirements, The Group strives to decrease liquidity risk by focusing on profitable groath, kean kevels of working capital and a satisfactary long-term leverage.

To fund cash deficits of @ mare permanent nature the Group has bars both in the bond market and by bank loans and -overdrafts. Berce, liguidity risk &
affected by inberess levek, payments of instaliments and the Group's sidity ta refinance existing loans,

See note 5.3 for an overview of the maturity profile on the Group' finsncial liskilities and am cverdew about avadable cred bnes, and note 5.8 for bguidity
T

Cradit risk

{Lrecht nzk = the risk that a courterparty wil not meet its obligations under a finandal insfrument or oustomer tonract, leading to a irancal less. The Group
trades anly with recogaised, craditaorthy thind partios, It is thi Grou p's palicy that @l customses s wish 1o 0rade on cradit terms arn subject te cradit
wertfication procedures, which include an assessment of their cred® rating, short-term liquidity and financiad pesition. The Group obtains sufficdent collateral
{whens appidprate] fram ¢ i g meansal mitgalivg ke risk of Grancial ks fram delaults. In additicn, redeivalile balances are maniterad an an
angaing basis, with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Outstanding customer recetvables are regulary monitored and any shi tio e or cust s are generally cowered by |etters of credit or other forme of
aredit insurance, See nate 5,9 for comenents regarding trade receivables ageing. With respect 1o credit risk arsing from the ather financial assers of the Graup,
wwhich comprise cash and derkative financial assets, the Group's Eeposune to onedit misk arises fram default of the Countenpasty, With a madimum espogune equal
to the corryrg amount of these instroments. The Group limits s coungenperty credit risk on Ehese assets by dealing only with francal rstitubiors with credit
ratings of at least & or equivalant.
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5.6 Capital management

For the purpose of the Growp's capital management, capital includes issued capital and 2l other equity reserves attributaible to the eguity
holders of the parent. The primary objectie of GLX Holding's capital mansgement is to ensure that it maintaing healthy capatal ratios in

groer L support its business and magimise shareholder value,

The Group manages its capital striscture snd makes adjustmants in light of changes in economic conditions and the reguirements of the
hnancial covenants Referends is made te note 5.2 Tor disclosed infarmatan reganding irnenest bearing liablities and finan cial covenants,

31.12.2024 31,12.2023
Callafle Open Bond 1 350000 1350 000
Interest bearing liabilities to financial institutions |rar-current and current) 1 305 104 1 155 000
Lease liablties non-current and current) 162 BX1 194 T&l
Liss: cash and bank depost eacl, restricted cash -BRE 23] 48 509
Wet-interest bearing debl)[depasit) 1 0F1 505 1214 251
NEr st baoving deb! sxchtas arangement foes of 0% 209 mikos i 3024 [A023: NOW 32,3 miVas)
Todal Assats 5 B50 574 54231 050
Todal Equity 1 654 462 1515 403
Equuity ratio 30 % 3%

of the document
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5.7 Equity and shareholders

Share capital in GLX Molding A5 at 31.12.2024 Mumber Mominal Yalue Bealance Shest
Shanes NOE 1 000 1 000 1 D00 D00
Total NOK 1000 1000 1 000 000

Al shares have the same voting rights

Holders of these shares are entitled to dividend and to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. There have been no changes in the
number of shares in 2024 or 2023, GLY Holding A5 is 2 100% owned subsidiary of Glace Holdoo A5,

There has been no distribution of dividend during 2024 or 2023,

Recancikation of aguity is shown i the statement of changes in equity.
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5.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cagh and cash eguival 31,12.2024 31.12.2023
Bank deposits, urmestricted &EE 220 4242 509
Bank depasit, restricted 26135 31391
Total cash and cash equivalemts 712 348 520 200
Liguidity reserve 852 258 TI7 209

The liquidity resense is the total overdraft and rewabeng fadlities of 2l Group companies, minus all ublised overdraft and revaheng faolities,
and added all cash on hand and depasits. The liguidity reserse for the Group |5 organised in a revaheing faclity and a Multl- Currency Cash paol.
In addition, GL¥ Helding &5 has bank depasit,

The Band may be extended by additianal NOK 650 millian. This & net inchided i the liquidity resere,

Legally, Glamox AS & the counter party towands the Bank regardirg the Malti Currency Cash pool within the Group, The net positicn of the cath
posal & preserted a5 cash snd cash eguivalents.



5.9 Trade and other receivables

Trade and cther receivables 30122029 31323025
Trade receivables
Tracke recsiuab ey 528 fifl 466 B0
Taotal trade rececivables 528 BH1 4BB 879
Proyisicn far impairmsent of trode receieabiles boza POTE
At lanusary 1 15101 23 527
Currency effect BO2 1842
This year's ks -7 07 10671
Payments recehed against previous losses 540 Bl
Business combinstions 55 -
Provision s yaar 2 385 5019
it December 31 15 paz 18 101
#is at 31 December the ageing analyses of trade receivables i, as follows:
Past dse

Againg analysis of trade recelvablos Total Mot past dos < 30 days 31-60 days E1-90 days =90 days

024 520 A1 364 465 1043 571 206 fan 1527 12 635

2023 463 7% 344 501 ar 4Tl 14 096 A 086 16 625
Dthar rocaiva e 3113 2024 3103 F023E
Prepakd ather expenses a1 a7 a2 195
Prepaid VAT 27 337 23451
Prepakd tax 213m13 13zr3
Other 1B 185 14 266
Tatal ather receivalles 108 770 ‘99 E91

For detalls regarding the Group's procedures on managing credit risk, reference |s made 1o note 5.5

r]/O_'} ‘ 100



5.10 Trade and other payables

Trade and cther payables

31.12.2024 31.12,2023
Trade payabdes
Trade payables 358 581 318 221
Total trade paypables 358 Bl 515 ¥l
Otheer payabiles
Pubilc duties payables 149 (83 123 =03
Tofal other payables 149 g3 123 503

Far tracke and oiher payahles ageing analysis, reference is made to note 5.3,



5.11 Financial income and expenses

Financial income and exg 024 2003
Financial incoma

Net currency gain ?RM -
Interesl neame &6 240 54119
Contingent consideration 5240 -
‘Other fimancial incame 1% 543
Total financial income 74 391 54 663
Financial experdes

Met currency loss - 3753
Interest sxpenses® 335 FEO 32r ¥81
Contingent consideration - 2632
Daheer financial expenses 14 BHS 14014
Finandal experses 150 445 345 &80

* intevest caxpenses include interest on inose Dobiithes

Tha Group applies hedge accounting an ret meestmands in foregn subsidiaries. Loans and bank cverdrafts are applind a5 hedging instruments
s nete 5.1 Currendy eMects Trom hedging irstruments ane preserted in other comgrehensive income, te the extent That the hedging &
effective.

In 2024, contingent conslderatians conslst of NOK 5.2 million in finsncal iIncome rdated ta the acquistion of Wasco and LitsIP.
In 2033, contingent considerations consist of NOK B.6 million in financial expense related to the acquisition of Wasco, LitelP and Luminall,
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6.1 Taxes

Fuitl] Hir3
Incorme BAx Bxpanse;
Tax payable 111 558 12 P03
Change deferred tax'deferred tax assets 18 335 Erir 1111
Taw related to previous years -1172 -1413
Total income tax expense 52 051 TS
Income tax and defened tax related to Mems recognised in OC) during the pear
Taw effect of ret gainkes on hedge of foregn subsidianies 15 964 22 M7
Tax affect on remeassremants on defired benefit plans Rl -2 266
Incoene tax and deferred tas charged to 00 17 045 =30 283
Total income tax expenses for the year on Group kevel:
Rarsagan Lompaniag iroze 2537
Foraign comparias =033 70 LAR
Tatal income tax expenses Ter the yoar 92 051 T8 725
21123034 31122023
Currand tax Rabdithes cansist af:
mcame tax payable Tor the year as s iif 55R 0z M3
- adjusted Bor tee efect of net gein/loss on hedpe of Famipn subsidares -16 964 -28017
-of which paid in fiscal year 57043 -5 187
- payment of withholding tax FELH 207
o prowiskon related o previous years -5 1720 0
Currendt tan labilities 31.12 28584 15 82D
- O which cdlassified 3= other receivables (prepaid tae - nobe 5.9) -31 378 -19 279
- O which dassified as income tax payabde 50 357 35 099
Dl il B liabiRiag | } 31.12.2024 31122023
Progerty, plaen and eguprsng -3 B4 T 107
Irrtanginle mouets 932 TaB 989 211
Cther current assets R RiE -46 %2
Lisbdlrties =33 942 -35 7543
Wet penskan reserdes/oommimaents -39 BO5 34 333
Lasses camried foraard §inecluding tae credit] <733 181 53111389
Urrtaed profit’! 28 052 155 697
Restricbed interest decucton carned forward 41112 511 674
Basis for deferred tax liabilites [assets): -204 56 91 828

Iuramed profi relabes 10 prafitin the Etonian subddiany, that & taed when Ture diddend i distributed, 0 Group SO00UNS, GO ane booked a5

derlerred tax imbility bsasd o profe penerated in the Exdtonan susasiory

Cadculated defered tax assets ' 340 501 294 520
- Dederred tax assets not recognised ' 264 618 -214 7558
Wit defered tan assets recognised in balande sheet 75 BEY 0 TRT
Dl rrad Lax liahilies gniked i Balance shaet 281 208 301 450
i 3033 hae baen updated te inchede interest carry-farward in the Glma groip
Change delermed tedelered tax assesin balance sheal -6 250 A7
Deferred o chamged 1o 00 Bl 1 266
Business caombinations Sa13 -
Currency effects -1 7ab ~F12%
Change deferred tas/deferred tax aszety in currest income tax axpense -18 335 -1 566

The Growp's oparatians are sulyact 1o incoms tax in varkous farsign jurisdictiors. The stalutory incomea tax rates warg fram 14% 1o 318,
wrhich resadts in g déference betwmen the statubory incorme bax rate in donuey snd the average tax rate spplicable to the Group, &
reconcili ation of the differences bebween the theoretical ta expense under the rate applicable in Morsay and the actual tas expense is

RiaioadiRation of i L o e 2034 2023
Prafitfloss before tanss A7 626 4 581

Tax mpeende [Morwesy tax rete| g aik 1008
Permanent differences 3436 11391
tffect of deferned tax asset not recogresed 52939 &Y G0y

Taw related o previous years 1172 1413 ?"‘
Effects of foreign tax rapes -1 677 -3 93‘-1..
Othar tasss w7 {0
Recognised inceme fax expense EELTH

EfTectivis Bax rabi



7.1 Management remuneration

GLY Holding AS

LY Holding A5 has o emipkoyees.

Thwe Baard of GLY Helding &5 has proposed a remusseeation of 80K 50 thousand ta boand memies, Harea-Maria Heikkinen, far the twebs-manth
percd ending at the General meeting in 2025, The Boand members are not subject to agreements for severance pay, bonuses or prof-sharing.

Parlarmance- ralabed Dthar
Firly Salary Banus paid Peridian  rem Elan
Aistridl Srmonsen Joos - CEQ* Foos J673 EEL o
Otheer members of Group Managemaent leamn R 1510 =0

“nameney oorree T Form EE 1 BOK o aesrage e 155

Group CED remuneration conditions inchsde payment toa persion scheme amaunting to 10% of the base salary and 2 performance bonus with
A E M pagTee] Eaunting ta 7% ol the Base salary in bicandance with the Compamy’s bonus scherne Bar Bop managerial in place fram lime 16
time. The notice perdod is & months if the CED decides to resign and 12 months if Glamox terminates the employment conbract. The CEO s entitled 1o
a 12 manths base salary as severance payre in the event ol wermiration of the diy vy e caarnp Rerrwneration 1G the CEO is pasd in

&

Danish ironer {DKK). A temporary loan of NOK 1.2 milion was granted to the CED in Moswemiber 2024 and fuly repaid in December 2024, Interest
wrs caloubated an markel b and covered by Glamon A5, Mo otker ks or pledpes bave been provided to the board members o senior
management of tha Graup.

Other mermbens of Group Masagement consist of Geir Hakedal, Mina Hal, Meebs Pebiésien, Eniat Rusten, Temmy Strandan, Vikior Scberkssrg,
Hatalke ‘Wintermiark and Terk: Loken |from Febroany|.

Performance- ralated Dther
pisrel Salary Eonus paid Pension remurmeration
HAstrid Simorsen Joos - CEO" GEdT 1578 BES L
Lal i bars of Group Manag 15 Ted 3IETE 16ZT 513

* iy porrr ion ore DEE fa HOW o seprige vabe LA2

Other memnbers of Group Management consist of Geir Haukedal, Mina Hol (from karch), Meels Feterson, Koat Rusten, Tommy Stranden (from
Movember|, Viktor Sdderberg, Matslie Wintermark ffrom Apnl), Monica Birdseth jurtil May] and Hikon Melmersen juntil October)

Share holdirgs

Ranag: and board r bers of Samos 4% oens shares in GLL MipCo A5 which indirectly owrs Glamox &% through Glace HokdCo A5 and GLE
Halkdirg A5, GLY MEpCo A5 has issued 4 million shares in total and cwns L% of the A-shanas in Glace Holdoo A%, Glace Holdoo A5 cwns 76.1 74 of
Glamom 4% mdrecthy through GUE Holding &5

Glamaon group management’s and Board members’ holding of shares in GLY MipCo AS per 31122024

GroUp management Shares

Astrid S Joos 400 184

Hawkvalley Invest A5 (Ger Haskedal) ITE 386

Enut & Busten 2F5 156

Meels Feberson 175 47

Berga et AS [Wiktor Shdorerg| 155 231

Litee &5 (Toenmy Stranden| 051

Helmy Holding &S [Natslie Wintermark] 65851 %
Hira 4 Hol 58 367 b‘
Usetid AS (Terje Lakan) 55 BEA

ioard members b?-) t'b

Aromi irvest Oy {Mkas oro)® 435 154 ?,\
Cramaimeygand Org |Hanna-Maria Helkiren| 13

*Arami Ineest Oy owns pdditional 35 456 B-shares and 771 124 D-shares in Glacs HoldCo 45, %%rl:\ *
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7.2 Post-employmaent benefits

Slamox AL i legally obliged to have oocupational penskon arrangements under the Morsegan Mandatory Occupational Fension Act. The Norweglan pension

AFTERER MBNTS salsly 1R reguiramants of This ac,

Dafined contrilariion plan

The majanty of the Group's emgloyees are covered by defined contribution persion schemes. Contibutions 1o these schemes sre recagrised a5 8 peraicn
epense as they oocur. Total oosts related to the Groups contrisution plans were RNOK 42.5 milion n 2024 {2023: MOE 39.9 miiion).

Defined benefit pension plan

Tha Groaif alsa has dafingd bensdit pansian plans in Glamox AS and in Tour subsalianas of Glamda A5. The detined banafit glans in Glamox AG, Glamoe A5 and
Hamox 5p. ¢ oo with subsidaries aocourds for approsmately 50% of the net lability in the Graup, The remaining 10 % of the ret Rabiity consist of seyenal

minar defined benedit penskon plans incther subsidilaries.

Om Group kesel, total net persion labilities were NOE 36.2 mélion (net of the pension Fabilgy of NOE 122.7 mélion and penskon glan assets of NOE B5.4
reillian] & at 31 Decernbes O34 A of 31,12 3023 ol met pensian liabilites were MOE 38,0 million {net of the persion labilitg af BOE 1291 milion aesd
pension plan assets of NOK 91.1 malikon]. Sctuanal gareicszes recognised in the ret person [laskilites smounted to MOE 17 millon in 2004 (2023 BOK 15.1

millian|.

Risks related to defined benefit plans

The defined Bsnelit glans expose 1he tomgany bo vafses demegraghe and esonamic fsks, sath a8 Dngeyity, invesiment, Garrendy and slened rabe risks and

in some cases, inflation risk.

Components of defimed Benetlt cost in profit and loss Z0E4 HOE3
Me1 Sarvice Cost &399 4881
Pricd Sarvice Coast 297 -
It el cos inchuding Lax 2 3080 2041
Irterest ingome -1112 -2 023
Administrabon espenzes 153 159
edined benefit cost recognised in profit and loas CEiT] & 059
Changes in persian plan assets during the year

Pereion plan assets (fair valuel 1.1 21097 27 261
Contributiors and benefits paid during the yvear 2851 o510
Irterest incomss 1311 1023
Administration aRpensas -153 -159
Return on assets eucl, mlenest indome 1498 i RO9R
Curmniy Iranslstian 1 5@4 10 SRS
Pensinn plan adsels (Tair walie) 31,12 &5 367 077
Changis in the pricsent value af pensics obligations during 1he pear

Perrion obligations 1.1 115058 1A 175
Met service cost €399 4081
Lontributions and benefits paid during the year -16 (4B -16 B9y
Imterest oost including tax 23499 1841
Actuanial gakes and kasses 1189 17043
Curmancy translation 1E33 11610
Pension obligations 3113 112 742 129 058
IWet pension abligations 31,12 38375 37981
Reconciliation of net defined benefit Babilivy/{ asset]

wet defined Nabiityassat] , 1.1 1T 581 11914
Defined benefit cost recognised in PEL & 738 &058
Dafinad banehit cost recognised in OC - E87 1% 145
Contribiuticas and banelits paid during the year -& BA5 -& 1R3
Curmency ranslatian i03a i €5
Hmmi.'lﬂllﬂ'limlh.ii.ii 3E 375 37 981
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Gipemox AG

The net pensicn lakdlities consists of o defined benefit plan Tor 43 emplopess. The pensian plan are onganiced as "cont ibation-based® schemes as per &m, 15
of the Swiss Federal Law on Vesting in Persion Plare. Under these plan arrangements, retirement benefits of active participants acones pwer a notional acoownt
ok tha sum af rati cradits (et cradit Farte multiplied with pensianasls salarg) and imorets. Suerape age of the participants in the pension plan
was 3{LG5 a5 of 31 December, 2024,

Financial conditions: e 223
wortality table By 2020GT By 202067
Discount rate 100% LE0%
Expected rebumn on plam assets Z00% 135 %
Salary incraase 150% 110K
Peesicen iNCrase 000 % LR
Change [NOK

Sensitivity amalysis of pernsion obligations W00 Change %

DE0 erad of period dcount rabe + 0.25% -2 348 3%
DE0 erd of period dEcount rate - 0.25% 1076 4%
&0 and of period salary increase + 025% 784 M

DE0 erad of period falary intreacs - 0L 25% -758 Ak
Peasion obiguben per T1 12 2009 is MO 815 miMien. Currescy rafe (CRESNGE) ax of 31, 12,3040 hove been osed in fhe sensfiaby aanheris

Expacted futare comtributions MOK 1000
Eupected emplogper conributions nest year 2 146
Expected employes contributions nest year I 146
Expected banafits paymants ret vear 2577
Lurnimey rode [CHIVTAONT an of 32,12 300 bowe besn used fo 1:  futuer & v it
iamgn $p, 7 0.0, with swbsidigries

The gerdicn lakility in Polesd cansists al reinemengs Becefi, diability Benehit and desth benelit Diability Becefit and death benefit make up apprasimately
15 % of the pension kabiigy, whie 85 % relates to retirement benefit. The long-term annual salary growth rate was essumed to be &.5% in vear 2005 and 5%
Polloasiog years. Whan determinieg the pansian iabiicy, the probabdity of abtaining addi | sz @it & Wik Calkan iro eocount, Tha probabdlitg of
achieving rights to severance pay and death severance pay is understood as the probability of invalidity and desth of an emgloyer before reaching retirement
ape, provided that they remain in an employwest relationship with their current employer. Retinement age means the age of 60 for women ard €5 for men.

Finandial conditions: 2024 2023
Mortality table PTTZ 2023 wg GUS  PTTZ 20T wg GUS
Discount rate -1 5 1M
Expipcted Foliusm on pilam asiets e n'a
Salary increase 50-6.5% 50-12.0%
Perpion intrease nfa nis
Change [MOK

Sensitivity analysis of pension obligations 1000 Change ¥

D80 erdd of period dicount rate + 0254 -368 3H
S0 erad of perind dicount Fate - 0255 3nz Ik
DE0 end of period daary indrease + 015% Ans TH
D0 end of period sslary incresse - 0.25% 725 &%

Penzion abgoion gev I 122004 = MOW 120 miNon. Currascy nane (PLMANDW o3 of 20122004 bave baen ueed o phe sannlivtly anaysin

Glamsaa AS

Glaenan A5 has dalined beredit plans for P Termar amgdoyees and Tor soene amplosees wid ave net Bean transharned o o praviousky defivsd Banalit plan

wehen this was closed and replaced by a defined contrbagion plan.

Finandial condtions: 2024 2023 %
Mortality table k2013 K213 C.’)b‘
Discount rate I90% 1I10% (,3
Expected retam on plan assets 390% 310% n_.) %
Salary incraase 4m0% 150% b‘ t'.b
Percsion incraase 575% 335N N
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8.1 Group companies

GLE Holding AS awrs 76.17% of the share in Glamox A3, this alio equals the woting share. The hasd office of Glamox & in Nareay. Share
capital of Glames A5 is MOK EG million. Carrying amount of Glamox shares in the GLX Holding AS accounts is MOK 2,T35.2 millian.

Glamge A5 Is the parant company in Glamax Grown consisting af 28 companies, A8 are directhy andfor indisectly 100 % caned,

Glamox A% has the following subsidiaries as of 31 December 2004:

Glamaox Group's voting
Name of company Office CUR Share Capital ‘ownership share
Glamox &5 Denmiark DEE 4900 10 %
Glamas A8 Swaden GER BOD 100 0%,
Glamos Oy Finland EUR 100 10005
G5 [Borehamwiad] Lid, Erygland GEP q 1000 0%
Glamas Ireland LEd. Ireland EUR 169 100 06%
Glamox GmbH Germary EUR S 100,06 !
Was{o GimbH GeFianmy EUR 6 100K 055
AG Glamox Eztania EUR 166 100,065
Glamax karine and Ofshare Gk Garmarny EUR 5626 10006
Glamax B, The Netherlands  EUR 18 100 06
Glamax Aqua Signal Corparation 1.2 usp 100 1040 ¥
Glamox Inc. Canada can 2208 1040 D
Glamax Pre Ltd, Singapuore G0 4000 10008 ¥
Glamaox |Suzhou) Lighting Co. Ltd China Ty B0 388 100 0¥
Glamaox |Suzhou) Trading Co. Ltd China CNY 1 500 il
Glamox Co. Lbd. Spurth Korea ERW TrHOI0 1Mk D%
Glamax Brasil Buminacss LTOM Brazil BRL 50 10008 !
Birger Hatlehakks veg 15 &5 Tarway NOK 100 100 s
Glamox &5 Switzerland CHE 200 104 D%
Glamay L. Erglana GEP 52 100D
Liked® Ltd. England GRP o 100 0
Glamax 5p. 2 oo, Paland FLN 5000 1040 D%
Glamax Wilkasy Sp. 1 0.0 Faland PLM 45000 100006
Glamax NT 5p. 7 0.0 Faland PLM 74 {50 1040, D%,
Luminell Sweden 48 Sweden s 14 10400 !
MARL Internatianal Haldings Ltd Ergland GEp 63 100.0% *!
MARL Intermationad Ltd Ergglanid GEP 93 100,08 !

Uilampa Brasil Bumenacaa LTDA owns 1 share of tatally 50 000 shares, comresponding to non-contralling interest of 0LO02%.

Wiy 2024, Luenine® Marway A% and Luminell Group A5 wis merged with Glarmoe A5, Lusirel Sweden A8, & larmes subsidiary af
Luminedl Marway &5 is row a fully owned subsidiary of Glamaox A5,

Hin 2024, Glamax Fie Lid. had a capital decrease of NOK 158 million,
i 3024, there was a capital increase in Glames Gmbh af NOE 67.3 millian
Hin 2024, Glamark AS acquired 100% of the shares Im Bard Internaticnal Haldings Lid., which fully owns Marl International Ltd, The

acquisition was completed an August 13, 2024, The canging amount of NOK 108,% millian corsist of the cash payment and estimated
Earr-au,
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8.2 Business combinations

MUAAL International

Glamos A5 scquired 100% of the shares i MARL International Maldings Ltd, which Fully owns MARL Intemmational Ltd. The
acquisition was comgpleted an August 13, 3024, and has been consalidated into the Group’s finan cial stabements as of
that date. MARL Internabanal was established in 1973 and s based in United Kingdam. MARLInternatianal brings ower 50
years of expertse in LED technalagy, design ard manufacturing of electrenic systems,

The tatal parchase consideration was MOE 106.5 million, consisting of cash consideration paid of NOK 628 millicn and
contingent cordidesation of MOK 44.0 million, The contingent consideration relates o future financial key figures,

The soquisstion cost is allocated to identifiable assets and lisbilities at Fair value onthe saoquisiton date, The sxcess

amount is recognised as Goodwill. The below table illustrates the fair values of the identifiable assets and Eahbilities at
acquisition.

Prelimilnary Purchase Price llocation

Al figures in 10K Carrying it Faiir wanlue A, Fair wvalua
Assals
Goadwill Sho04 SSond
Other ntangible assets 11 168 11 168
Tangible assets 15548 15 925
Invertaries 27944 7044
Receivablbes 4950 2850
Lagh and cash egulvalents o282 9 2R}
Taotal assets 62124 &7 162 149 XET
Linbalities
Long term Balbilities 5 Be7 FEo )
Defarred tax 1621 7T 9413
Lurrent liabilities 7218 27 215
Tatal liakbilities 34 GEE 72 42 478
Total |dentiflable net assets at fair valus IV AR TIT inG BOd

Purchase consideration:

Cash corsideration paid 2 Tdi
Contingent condideration liability 44083
Total corsideration for the shares 106 802
Met cash flow:

Cath conslderatian pald E2T4E
Cash acquirad 018
Mt cash flow from scguisition 53 484

The stquired goodwill is assumed to mainky relate o positee market devslapment, pessiblties for effidency
improwements and opportunities related to strategic growth. Other intangibbe assets consist of trademark, customer
relationships and praduct design.

I the acqusition of BMARL International had gcourred 1 January 2034, revenises in 2024 for the Glamon Group wauld have
been approximately GBP 4,3 millian (MNOK 578 million) highes and aperating profit would have been approximately GBP
D emillice | WOE .2 malian) highser.

hiz file is sealed with a digital signature
i The seal is a guarantee for the authenticity

of the document



9.1 Earnings per share

Basic earnirgs per share [EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit Tor the year atiributable w ardinary equity balders of the parent by the weighted
awerage nuenber of ardinary shares autstandeg duriag the year,

GLX Halding A5 does not have any dilutive efects at the eamings per share caloulations,

2034 piard)
Atiribartion of profit for the year
Tatal prafit foe the year sttributable to eguity heldes of the parert 23 141 04 (4B
ToAal peofit/less far the year abtribatable ta equity hobders of the panent Tor basic earnings 13141 -0 (R
Earnings per ordinary share attributable to shareholders:
Weighted aversge number ol ardinary dhares gutdandng wused foar caloulsticn: R 1000
Earnings per share in thowsand |bask and diluted) 31 -34.0

9.2 Related party transactions

Felsted parties are Group companies, major shareholders, Board and senior marsgement in the parent company and the Group subsidianes, The
agreaments an remwneration far the CED and Grosip mardgement Sppear in nite 7.1

All transsctions within the Group of with sther relsted paries are based an the princpse of arm's length

A temparary lan was gracmed 1o 1 CED in November 2024 and fully repasd i Degember 2024, No athier oans o pledges have been grovided te
the baard members or senior manage ment of the Graep,

Ther company has agreemants with Triton Advisers Limited and Tritan Investmaent Managemant Limited for counseling and success fes relatad to
the aquisition of businessas respectively, Expensas during F024 wers NOK 2.4 milkon |2023: NOE 2.9 millian).

9.3 Events after the reporting period

Propased dividerd
Afper the reporting date, the Board of Glamas A% hes proposed a dividend distribution amountng 1o MNOK 165.0 milian, oeresponding to ROK 3.50
per share, The dividend shall be distributed in three tranches, of ahich ROK 55.0 millon shall be distributed onoor befone 21 May 2025, ROK 55.0

rnillian shall be distribited anor befane B0 August 2025 and ROK 55,0 milicn shall be distributed on o belone 31 Ooeber 2025, GLX Halding A5
will rescaive MOK 1357 million of this distribution,

Dividane payment

Qn 20 January FO25, the Board of Directers of Glamoe A5 approved a0 sdditional dividend dsiribution of ROK 55 mdlicn, corraspanding te NOK
0.E3 par share. Dividend of NOE 55 millkan was distrinuted on 4 Febraang 2005,
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10,1 Materlal accounting policies

The Groap has conustently appiesd the inllow ng scccuréing polcies booall parinds g n fhea i firaancial mecept if
rreertboaed othorm ke,

In iﬂﬂﬂl‘.‘ﬁ. the Groug acepied Mecloaune ol Aooaungng Falcks Imnunnnuu- (LU B FE Pramice Sl:ib!lﬁ!nl: 2| from 1 Jamisry 2023, The
riguira The Sl of satirial, rathas than vgnilicase, palici the diidl rezt ravull in any chinges 1o
the acrounting policies themesstees, they impacted the acoountng policy intormation dicieaesd in oe ek drosmesancas,

Riseiiieg 10 COMISTIS With Dusbaminrs

IFRS 1% i bovsed onthe princighe that reeenue is recngnnes wies contral of gnods or serace: s fraaferms in s . of reveruem
:huuldm-pr:sernl-eI:fmmfulpmmmgmd::-rumusw:mmnnahan:mnmhlutmﬂm:m::ummmmuﬁuhmrmumwlnm
it thind in e for thoa goodi or dervicas.

A0 L e e S P e 10 i e oSugtion & salid of poodh. Glafan’ s nais gaifaimance sbbgation is rHlaed 1o sale of goods whin (5
pericreance noligatines am the deliary of s agresd sniuma of produchs within e sgresd sperficaion

ke of goads

Reserie b recogetsed when contmlof the producis has trarsfemed, being when the producis ane delisered to the customer and thene is no urdsliled
ablgation that could affect the custame:’s accaptance of the product. The preducts are manly ssdd is mlitien b wpaately identifable cosbrack with
cietomers. Delhery oooers when the products hwe bz shippad to the specilic kcation, the sk of ptanlemoance wnd leg Rave been translermed (o the
cusbemer, and sther tha o his 4 thar presusts in sccomdanss with 1 ol sontract, 1 aesaplance prousions have laped, or e Geoup
has nbjectie mwidence that all criberia for acoepiance hawe bees catisfied, Standard delery berms for cushomens witin the PBS segment i Delbserad
Dty Paid {0GP]. DOP delvery 1oerms imiplies that delksery i completed when the goods are made asaiable 1o the burser o a specified ooaton. Scandard
delwe ry trrms to cusiomess withn the MOW segrment is Bz W |EXW] EEW deloeny teoms implies Brat dieftwery is complebed mhen the goods am
e Fedilable, suRably packaged o a specifed locatan, ofen ata Glimas faciony of depol.

i element of Tinancing |s deemed prasent a5 the sales ane made with 3 credit term ep 50 B3 days, whics B congstent sith markst practice. A recekabie
b recopsivad whan the poodi ans dil rearad & 1his is the poin in Gme that the consideration & ensonditional bacaus only thi paseaie of G s
reqained belmre the paymeni is due,

The goms am normally mkd with skareised werrashie that the goedy comp by with the sgresd-opom ip Thma dard warranties am
accounbed Tor wsing LS 37 Prowisions, see nooe 4.1 Tor o e infonmation. Glimdas dees nol hasse ary other signilicant obfgations Tor reterns of refunds.

| Fraimiberagi

Irsarineies aee mepaired at the loser of cost and ret reaksshie wale TlemnuFlmmwﬂnlubnumﬂleml:ruhynrmemﬂmﬂthwcl Far
Tirished goods and work is progress, cost indudes an apgropiaoe shane of producion overheads based on noemal ity but eechud
bermwing soaty,

Haw materal mainly consnbof LED plastic s, i b, ak e ks and pack

Properiy, glant and eguipmens
Targibiks finid agiss sich a5 plant afd & g pmenk ek stabed b codt, ratof acouielted o pred aton ane o i laled impa s losis, il arg.

Dapreciabionis calkulated on a straight-lne basis over the estimated uselul Bves of thie s, reference is made 1o note 3.1 Tor further puidasce related
to uwebul s

and
B itats oo bing lioss oo scco wted fof wsisg the agquisiion mathod

A comingent corsideration oo be pranslerred by the qumrﬁllhrrnmmhed at Tadr walue at the acgeision daie. Contingen cons deration labilicy is
rreraaured at fair walue with Ehe changes in fair vaken grised in the af prefit and loss.

Gaadull is miriurad i coid biss any I rmard ks R in rmade 1o note 1.1 Tor an onerview gver goedw i, aliocation of
poodwill per CIE and impoirmernt testing.

ITangi ke GeEts
Inkangile avuty are carvied at coxt s any

Faaroech oad dinanlogmaen? okt
Research costs are sspensed ga incurred, Devekopment expendiwes on an ndsideal project. ehich represenis new apploationsftechnology, are
cogfid i nLatgib adots il crivana bor cagi albenion ana comphed with, S nole 1.3

Imgarmant of non-financial masts

Furiher disd oeaines relaiing to impafioment of nor-financal asseis ore also prosaid ed in the folowing robes:
= Properly, plarg and egeipment - Mote £1

v Gpedel] - Mot 3.2

= Other intan gble wmsets - Mole 3.3

A each repoming dane, the Groug assess wmhether there B an indication that an aset may be imgained. @
Ir 355255 Y i i sk, thee est marted future cash Thows an: dscoented 10 ther presen valic wing a dscownt e that reflects ourent market (gjh
Bsnueianty oF thie Hrs value of maniy end B asks dpecifc 1o B s I‘b rb%

=Jh

o*‘?f;q’
S

O"ﬁ) ' 110
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Prowiskns

WFasranty grovisms

Peeratiions For mareenlyeedatad Cowt are s gn b whsn the prosuet s sokd 1o thi b 19ilial recognition of the werranty proshion s B on
PR AT revena e and dgment, The len gt of the marranty time may differ betwesn the markats, The isitial esimate of waraniy-
rakinid oo5ls is revised annoally. anu:ial:-nrmmlur-m 8.3 and & 1 for Tunher detaik.

Restratrianiag prorkios
ara Tl enky when tha Geoup han g condructiae sbbgation, which is when a d formual plan wdentifies B b

mwtﬂmzmmnhelmumamrumu o affacted, 2 detaiied estimate of e d costs, and an aperopriabe
kne, and tha i Minctod hava biman rotifiid of the plan's man Setures. Aefanancs iy @lva made o note 4.1 for forthar datals.

Linitiets

The Group recogrises 3 right-of-gse psset and o lpse bshity ot the lpse commencement dabe, The right-cf-use paset B inRily measered o cost, which
comprises the mitial amountof the Rase Faeiiny ad justod 1o any e Made at oF Belors The com e ce et dabe, phis asy niial drect
oty ncurred snd an ertisate of cogs o divnentie and esove the underyi ng auet or to rebone the undierlying saset or the site onwhich | s iocited,
k255 any lease incenitees receksed. The rghi-ol-ise xeset is subsequently deprecaned using the stradghi-line method from the commencement date io the

i gl b Liniiea Seres, In additien, the dght-al-use o is peraedealy reduced by irgal e | e, F any, asd ady | r corlan of
the lzaae Esbitty,

The ksar iskdity b inkisly meawered ot te prasem vakie of te less payments shat ane not paid o tha mment date, using the
e ne st rane | mgdicit on thee lease or, & that raie cannot be readily detersined, the Group's incremenial Bomow ig rate.

The Greaip have used ingerest rabes from the csh goal faciity and nlecomgany lnens for determining the I wie |1} dor mach

subrsidiry. The hength of U8 Sgreemei is 50 3o ool Skl Thal e D2 e Tk i De ConEderathon wies Cakolan g the IER Par & specic e,

The k2ase bability i measured at amoried cost ising the efiective inberest mechod. it is remeasuned wihen there & a3 change in future lese payments
aring from a change noan indee or cabe, iTibana is a change in e Gnoug's esma ol the ameunt xsestind 2o ba gersable urder a reskfual value
puaranien

Kiezn-ba P will bm ide mifed and | fror w po ety oo dhe lase in sl srranp

Oiptinre o ectend & ke sould be condidired if maragement & reaenably certsin oeaercie the option. For the Groug's e arangements the vae
rraapadity ol the options have an esercie daie many pears down Bhe line &3 such. management has limbed ins ghi and they 2re not reasonably cerain oo
Tk aed S S liend hivi b Lk ifds dond dirilion

ClRMoe neCoggnd S S & Fasii iy T miakes dbteibations to ety ol ters of thi: panend whien the d Etridation 1S setharised wnd the d Eorisation is no lager at
the diszristion of the Company.

Finandial fobumsns
A Singncial instrument is any conbract that phves rise b0 s financial paset of one entfy ard 2 financal Rahility or esquity instumend of ancther enify,

Clarification af fnmcial instrements
Clamoe’ Snancal nsirnamens are grouped is the 1olbowing cnegorien

= Fair wabee through profii and foss [FYTPL]
+ Amortised cost (AC)

Lpensrmant af frisdcial oo
Under IFRS 9, firancisl ameris valued at amor e based on Bre "D credi loases (ECLT model,

L¥rire aff
Thar Greap iegaesty ns sgriliant racory from S asoust writtan ol

Hadge of et in dorelgn subsid
Hmil‘l‘dﬂhhﬁﬂth!nlﬁ' 9 Voo g S be el The Graup e ks Riaaking Credi Faglicg (SCF) and barnk geerdn depasie: in fareign
currarcy s hedgng imEmumant b hadge B expmure, Gany or ks on the kedging instrement relsting in the sHective portion of the bedge are
recogrisad D) while sy gains or 0ases redating 10 the ineflectise portion are recognsed in the corsobdated statement of prodit and les, On disposal
ool B Fizraiggn o sbaon, the comu stes value of any woch gains or kass recorded in equity is translennid 1o the statement of profi ar s Belecenoe &
meacks b nobe 5.1 and 55 far mone detalh.

IreoaimiE Taees.

Dwrlerred tax ansats am ] i for ol deduct bk & it tha carry forward of unwed tacx credin and amy urused 2ax iones. Defe red
mmamrbmmbodI:ul:hec-m:ntﬂuthIsnmbaltI:huunhlepmﬂl:mﬂlbemﬂhutmhﬂv‘khh‘wdﬂurﬂﬂzummdm:ﬂmmﬁ and e
carry formind of usuiad ban crad it and usuiad Ban Dok < i b ol dasd,

Pension: and cther post-smgl oyment benefit:
R re fie s, ompnsing of acnwarial gaens and logses, ane ised | dianzly in the ol finanecial mith 2 cor ding dbic
arcred i Ba retained eamings throwgh £X1 in the pennd inwhich they necer, are nat recl in prof® or less in whsegeest pennds,

=Jh
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10.2 Changes in accounting policies

There are ne changes in accounting policies which significantly affect current and future pariods.

10.3 Standards issued but not yet effective

Mo pubdshed but not yet effective standards, interpretations or amendments are expected to significantly affect the Group accounts.

&
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Altermative Parfarmance Maasures [APWs)

&P Dedinitions

Ingrdar bz enhance imimtory’ uree ding o the 'y GLE Holding presents certan altemates periormance measeres (AP o defined
Loy i Eurogsd s S ooaritias and Markals Sutherity | ESAAA Jin tha ESWA Guideines on AR natve Parfermance Measores T015/1067.

Mnrulludmdnnﬁmmulmmd hlnnﬂdwﬁmﬁmmulwﬁmm financial postion, or cash fows, gther than s firancal mesure defired or
apific in gha | raperting e (IFES]. Tha wrirh AFTAG 10 masung operabng perfommance aod & of the view that che &P
prossde iresestors with refewant and specific ope raiing figures which may enhance ther endersiandieg of S04 Holing's performance . The company wsaes the &P
Adjusted EBIT, adjested EAITA, adjusted EATRA adjieted EBIT margin, adjusied EBTA margn, adusited BETEL marging, adjusted botal resenue and obher
aperabng inceme, EBIT, EBITA, ERITOA, EBIT mangn, EBITA magin, EBITOA margn, Lierage ratia, Rt isgereit- bearing debs and Order intake i further defined
b,

The AP&Y: presented hersn am sot measorements of performance usder IFRS or cthar penerally sccepted socounting principles and imvestom ssou kd not consider

ey sugh missunis e b an aRirnative ba: |a) epirating or profit s & irsd in dan i with IFRS or ctbar gomarally scceplad
acoounting principhes|, 25 a measore of GLY Holding's operating peformance; or (b) any ather measunes of periomance under generally acoepted acooanting
principles, The APMs prasecbed Be e in may not be indcathe of the pany's al op ' resubts, noe are mach meguras meant to be predictiee of GLYX
Hald ing's future s, The company belleves Brat the APy { harais are i i by ik i thes markets in which GLE Holding
commnpebds and are witely wsed by invesions in comparing perfom ance unamﬂ:mnthnr.-hhm: rgand 1o factors such i depreciation, amonimtion and
Imipakrment, which can vary signficontle dep W upan Hng {in particular when aogubitione have oooured), business practice or non-operating

factors, Aooord mgly, (LA Holding A% discloars the APMs presenied berein be permit & more complete snd compre hensree anshni of its operating pedormance
Pl e T SR 0 VDS B s PR, ] oF e SOV Ty 6 Gl 0 SR 0 15 da bl Botau ik tomganic Caloulana th APV prosantad heven SMananly,
GLE Holding's preseriation of thess &PSE may nod be comparabie to similay tiled measines used by other companies.

Tha company hay prasisted thise APMs Bocause it oonsidan this o B impertanst supsl | [ Pt il 10 endervtand the e sl |
picture of profit gerstration in GUC Holding's operating acthities. Adjustmants ane pan:IFRE Tinandal measres that the Group considess to be an APM, and Thise
measures shou bd noft be wewed a5 3 substiute for amg IFES Ainencial measures.

Thea & Pt wsad ey GUE Holding A% are sat oul balow [prasented in alphabetical ordar]:

A juntest BT i3 defined g the profitInss) for the yeanfpericd belom net Snancipl income {expammaes) and imcome tas espense |EBIT|, adusted for specipl

EEms.

B jumSesd EBITA b chefined a5 the prodieicas| for the year befiore net financial income (aep L income fax sap and i of
mbangisle et aduted for special il

B lsied EBITDW |5 defined 22 the profitfllos)for the vear before net finand sl income jesgerees|. Income tax ssperes, depredation, amortb=tion and
mmpairmerd of nen-currerd anets, adusted for special tems

Adpted EBIT masgin (s Selined a5 &8 uned EBIT i 3 peroentage of total revens: and other opening inooes,

Adjusted EETA mangin is difinied o sdjuted EBITA 0 g of adjunted tatal amd sther aperating imceme
Adjusted EBITOA margis i defined a5 adjusted EBTDA 24 3 percentage of adjested total resenue and other operating income.
Adjumed retal revanos and cther operaing imoeme it definesd a5 1otal revenes and other cperating inoome afumed Tor spacial ipanmm
BT is defned pe the profit/Tlos) for the yesr before net financial neo me jegpe mas] and ircome tas espenaes

EBITA S darfiraid ok tha: peodieass) for tha pear before met i | irecimii | o SO e Tad Aot sataan afd Wi e of intan gk
assetn

EBITDN b defined a5 the prolit[hes) Tor the yaer belon net Snascial inco i e iaet], Foome [ aapesss, depraciaton, snoritation ad impaimmenst
of NOnFCUTEnT A55Ets

EBIT mangis b dalined as EBIT as a al and cthar iNg ncome.

ERITA maargin is defined g2 EBITA g @ peroentage of reverwe and other operating Income
EBATDWA miafgin is Safindid as EBITDA & @ parcantage of irvinie afd 21her opedaling ifme
Leversge ratio iy a mapure of net imeres-bearing debt dhided by adjusted DNTOA ks teelve months

Mt inerestbearing debt is defined as interess-bearing debt exclusing arangement fees minus teh and cash equisalents |eclded restrcted cash) and
nterast-bearng maestm et

Deder intaboe & rdasunad at grocs sl ue befoner dedoction of conmemi ssons and other sales nedoctons b.‘%
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APM Reconciliation

Adjusted EBIT
NOK 1000 31.12.2024 31.12.2033
EBIT 450 630 J9E 598
Spedal items a5 309 55516
Adjusted EBIT 545 983 354 114
Tatal rewenue and ather operating mcams 4 455 780 4 265 835
Adjusted tatal revenue and ather aperating income” 4 485 Fa0 d 2651 355
EBIT margin 10,0 % 0%
Adjusted ERT morgin ' ir2% EF%
Adjusted ERITA'
NOK 1000 ¥L.12.2024 11,12, 2028
EBITA 574 316 A434 753
Specal iterns 95 303 55 516
Adjusted EBITA' &G0 630 A% 26
Tatal féevenie bid ather aperaling Moo 4 486 FRD 4 265 8529
Adjusted tatal revenus and other aperating income” 4 48F 780 4 751 355
EBRITA margia 8% 3%
Adjusted EBITA margin’ 14.9% 1L5%
Adjusted EBITDA®
NIOK 1000 31122024 31.12.2013
Profit/loss for the period B2574 -74 144
Incame tan pRpoense 22051 TETI5
BMat financial tems FTe 054 15 a17
EBIT 450 RO 298 508
Amortisation ard imgpairment of intangible-asssts 123 G4F 135 155
EBITA 574326 434 753
Depreciation and impasrment of tangible-assets 131 Q& 134133
EBITO#A 705 388 558 BHS
Spaoial items 8P HES =2 193
Adjusted EBITOA" 7932738 621033
Tatal revenue and ather operating imcame 4 486 R0 4 165 525
Adjusted total revenuie bid ather aperaling incame’ 4 486 JRO 4 261 355
ERITDN mavgln © 157N 133%
Adfusted EBITOA margin * 17,7% 14,6 %
Adjusted Total revenues’
NOK 1000 31.132.2028 31.12.203
Total revenue and other operating income 4 486 TEO 4 265 B39
Special items In total rewenws and other operating incoms: E 4473
Adjusted tatal revenuess and other operating ncome’ 4 488 TEO 4 hil 355
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Special items

NOK 1000 ¥L12.2024 31.12.205%
Qther - 4473

Total special items in Other cperating income: - 4473
Restructuning cast/growth initiatiees 75154 42 22l
Claim cost related to specific preduct . 41k
Acquisition and irbegratian cost 2536 .
ERF Imbegration 5837 6453
Qther 4 358 7532

Toad special itemns in ERITDA 7 BES 52 148
Enpairment af noee-Cerent sy Tais 3 368

Total Special items in BT a5 303 55516

Met debt and leverage ratio’

NOK 1000 §1.12.2024 1,13, 2050
Mon-current ingeresi-bearng babibties 2534232 AT 0B
Mon-current kease labilities 92 B26 130 668
Current lease kabilities &o 785 &4 083
Arrangemant Tees A a3 x93

Meilai sl Baaring dabt 2717 735 1703 Tel
Cagh aed cash pquivaleris |axchadod restricied cagh) -&RR 220 453 505

Boet interust-buaring debt’ 051 508 ¥4 351
Sedjustod EBMOA" st twelwe moeiths 743173 531033

Leverage ratin* 26 EX
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GLX Holding AS

Statement of profit and loss

For the years ended 31 December

NOK 1000 Hatas 2034 2023
CQther operaling expensas 1,13 3 455 4 165
Tatal operating expenses 3 465 4 165
Operating profit -3 465 -1 165
Mat fimancial items B -37 645 1645
Profit)loss before tax -41 110 -1 516
Tanes g - -
Profit) loss for the year -41 110 -1 516

Statement of comprehensive income
Prodin/ lass Tor the year -41 110 -1 516
Tatal compreheniive indamse for Ehe period -41 110 -1 516




GLY Holding AS

Statement of finandial position

HOKE 1K Rofes 31122004 122020
MAS5ETS

Sharas in Subsidiaey 11 7 715 350 7 735 350
Tatal non-current assets 2 Th5 50 4735 ¥50
Curemt aksets

Oeher recareables ir 369 47 14

Cash and cosh aguivalents ¥ 16 247 k-
Total current assets 16516 52003
TOTAL ASSETS 2 751 B6B 2 TET 353
EQILITY AN LLABILITIES
Equity

Shere capital b 1 008 100

Shiang: premiam & 1552 346 1599 345

Ratainad pamings & -300 368 -161 755
Total equity 13T e 1450 gEF
Mon-current liabilties

Bl 345 1335433 1330172
Tetal non-current lishilities 1 56 433 18k027T2
Current liabilizles

Cehar currant liabditias I 17 456 LR 10d
Ttal current liabilitieg 17 456 18 104
Total liabdities 1353 339 1 348 IT&
TOTAL ECANTY AND LIABILITIES 2 751 866 1787 353

Csho, 29 April 2025

Ty — .
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Mikasl Aro
Chalrman of the Board

}f .._.ll ’
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¥

Joachim Solbakken Expen
Board member

.": ',:5-;' A "'I- i p

Hanna-Maria Heikkinen

Board member



GLX Holding AS

Statement of cash flows
For the years ended 31 December

Cash flows from operating activities Notes 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Operating profit -3 465 4 165
Changas in cther assets and liabilities 196 -3 26%

Net cash flows from operating acthvities -3 662 -6 434

Cash flows from investing activithes

Purchase/sales of shares in subsidiaries 11 -
Dividend received 167 563 114 247
et cash flow from investing activities 167 563 114 244

Cash flow from financing activities

Fraceads from issuance of band . 1 380000
Refimancing fee paid s -35 (G
Interasts paie 8 -158 473 -135 201
Interests recefved 221 612
Aepayment of bonds -1 350 000
Met cash flow from financing activities -157 553 -159 635
Met change in cash and cash eguivalents 6348 -51 825
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pericd 9 8309 Bl 725
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 16 247 9 899

Statement of changes in equity

MOK 1000 Share capital Share premium  Retained sarnings Total equity
Balance as of 31 December 2022 1000 1599 346 -159 743 1440 603
Profit [kods) far the year -1 51k -1 516
Total comprehensive income -1 516 -1 516
Balance as of 31 December 2023 1 000 1599 346 -161 258 1439087
Profit [bosc) far the year -41 130 -41 110
Total comprehensive income -41 110 -41 110
Balance as of 31 December 2024 1 Qoo 1 5590 346 -2 358 1 397 877
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Mota 1 - Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses 2024 pierk |
Consultancy Z 420 3030
Audit 336 L1358
Oikar A% B
Total ather operaking expenses LR [ a 16%
Aiad] 2024 03
Fae for statutory audit T 11%5%
Taw complance services 158
Total 936 1135
Mote 2 - Other current liabilities

I 123034 Balance 31.12.20F3
Aieraed interesl casl 15847 16519
e accrued cost 1 505 1280
Total ather carrent Rabilities 17 456 18 105
Mate 3 - Interest bearing liabilities
Mon-current Inte st baaring leans and barowings Inberast rate el atwrity il 343 3024 Balance 31.12.20F3
Callable Open Bond BIBOR + margin 2027 1 B50 000 13500000
Bark fee related o the bond issue -13 557 -19 HEE
Total non-turrent interest bearing loans and borrowings 1336433 1330172

‘Callaiole Open Bonad

LY Holding AS Baued & Boeed an 23 Felbnaary J023. The initial Bauaed arsount i§ NOK 1,350 milian ard 1ha m e iasiadd am aunt af the Bond i NOK 2,000
mibion. The initkl nomeral amount on each bord is HOKE 0.5 milion. The bond has an interest margin of 6.75% per a noume The interest payment is in February,
May, August and Decembaer, The maturay date is 2302, 2027, The Dutstiar g Bonds will maturs in full the katuriy Dae and shall be recesrned by the
Issuer on the Matunty Date at a price equal 1o 100% of the Nominal &mcurnt.

Ain preangement fee of BOK 136 millian melated o the r wing, is bogked agaired the borl, The arrangement feg iy expensed geer the aeslabiity period af
tha facility.

Callable Open Bond - InoeTence test:
The “Incurrence Test” s met if (|| no EBvent of Defauklt is contimuing o would result from the relevant soent and (1] the Laversge Bstio falls below 3 certain
thigshodd.

Bond - assats pladged a5 saourity
The= shares in both GLE Holding A% and Glamos 45 = pledged as seosity for the Bond.

Mote 4 - Aging of financial liahilities

FL 1L TS Less than 12 months 112 3 years Dwer 3 yeais Tokal
Callabike Open Bond® 154 I7H 1341 375 1 B96 653
Taotals 154 278 1543375 1 696 853
103 By Less than 13 manths 1 itz 3 years Chver 3 years Tokal
Callable Opan Bond® 1353115 310 230 1371830 L #3121 Q
Totals 155115 300 230 1371 836 1838 121

* Figures inc hude estimated interest payable



Mote 5 - Fair value measurement

Theie ta b i bera diwchosies indarm stion about all financial instrusmen s that a e sither measused @ Teir vales o where indoarmstion about leir vale &
dischosed. Thang were no wansles batwean the eva ks doring 2024 and 033

Camying st Date af Carrying

ot | Fair valug  Liwel 1 Lewel B Lewel §
Liabikries serasuned fdischeced a0 fair value
Calable Open Bond 1102 0ad EL1x2034 138 a1 1 5579250 u
Calabla Opan Bond 31123033 1132033 1330172 1395 563 K
Fair uplup of inancil insbruments
Fadr vl of el Calla bls Oper in caloulatied by wring the Osls Senck Excharge rading price ot year-eed and ssdludes carrying sscunt ol arengeman
LT
Mote & - Equity and shareholders
Shiaie cagital in GLY Helding AS ot 31,02, 2024 Miifiks Wb aal Wbt Baladi Sl
Shares NOK L Q) 1 (K p e ]
Total 1 500 1 DRy 1 D34 GO0

Hobders of these shares are entitled bo dvidend and fo one woie per shane ab general mestings of the Compareg. Thene have been no dhanges in bhe
nuymber of sheares in 3024 or 2033, GLY Hokfing 45 B a 100% cened subsidany of Slace Holdoo A5

Theri has besn n distritastion of dividend in 2004

Mote 7 - Cash and cach equivalents

Cash and cash equisalenss amount to KoK 16.2 million |HOE 8.5 milkon| as of 31 December 2024, GLE Holding 45 has no resivicied bank d eposiit.
The liguidity reserse pguaks the cash and cash equkalent amount. The Eond may = sdended by 2n addiional ROE G50 mi llon. THis & not included in the
ligi d ity reserve

Maote B - Finandal income and expenses

i imcome snd ExpEmTy 204 pirk]
ALETEsE inCane ar a1
Dreidend from subs ks 125 673 150 138
LET sl dapehik -163 303 -153 030
aher fnancal mepenses 435 -1 B2
Wt Fnancial income =37 65 I a3
Mote 9 - Tay

2024 223

Tan payable

COrdicary profi before -41 11 1516
Parmarant dillan nees -121 902 -151 454
Change in kemporany EL not recopnised 163013 151 97
Basai for Lax pargabla ] [i]
T baase % 1%
Tan payakle chi year's profie 1] [i]
Currant tax lisbilinies 3112 i} 1}

Dwlarcid eax llabiltie [assets):

Loeses camied Torward [incheding tas credi| 10T 150 107 020

Eautrictid intarast de carripd forasrd -BOE 715 445 As3 %
Nt i shares and subsidiasres -85 BT1 48 871 h
Basin for delared tax labilitie |acata): -7h4 F5& -601 743 ( q

Met dedermed bax geoets recognised In balance sheet [] [ br;b _rbt



Mote 10 - Management remuneration

GLE Holdimg A% has no employees.
The Board of GLE Halding &% has proposed 3 remursssation of NOK S0 thousand to beard memiber, Hanna-fdara Heikkinen, Tor the teeba-month penod
andlirg at tha Genaral meeting im 2035 The Board membssrs are fot subject 00 sgroaments Tor sauerance pay, bonuses of profi-sharing.

Mate 11 - Interest in subsidiaries

Az od 31 Decembar JO74 GLE Halding A% cvns 76,175 ol the shases in Glamaes A5, which alie représents [ha vating share

dalamox AL is & leading ighting supplier to the world's mesine and offshore markets, and & sgnificant supplier to the professional bullding markes in
Eurape, Glarrsan A5 is e parent comguaey af Glamos Group, Glamaon AS registe red addness is Birger Hatkebakks wag 15 in Molde, Norway, Glamas A5 hag
27 subsidiaries located in Europe, Asla and America. Total revenue and cther aperating income of Glamax Group in 2024 is NOE 4.286.8. million (2023:
HWOK 4,265 8 milbon|. Operabrg profa in 2024 is NOK 525 3 mellion [202%: NOK 377 3 million]. Average numbssr of full time employees in Glamax Group
wias 2,096 in PO24|2023: 2.086)

The book valkue of the Glames shares is NO® 2,725 3 (NOK 2,735.3 milkon| as of 31 Decemiber 2024,

Mote 12 - Events after the reporting period

Propased dividensd

Atter the reparting date, the Boand of Glamox AS has proposed a dividend distribution ameunting to BOK 165.0 milicn, carnespanding 1o NOE 250
per share. The dividend shall be distnbated in three tranches, of which ROE 550 milion shall be destributed on or before 21 May 3025, NOE 55.0
millian shall be distrfuted onar before 30 August 3015 and NOE 550 ralion shall be dstributed an or before 21 Octaber DO25, GLE Halding AS will
recnive MOE 17357 million of this disbribtion

Bividend paymsent
O 20 larwaaey P05, the Board of Directors of Glamex A5 appeovaed an additiceal dividersd dsaribution of NOE 55 million, cormesponding to NOK 0,83
per share. Dvidend of NOE 55 million was distrisuted an 4 February 2025.

13 Related party transactions

Relatad partios ane Growun companies, major sharehalders, Baard and sericr manage mant in the parent company and the graup subsadiaries. Mate
11 prowides information abous the Growp’s subsidiary.

all transactions within the Group ar with athes related parties ane basad on the principle of anm's length.
A bemporary loan was gracted to the CEQ in Nowemiber 2024 and Tully repaid in December BI04, 8o otk loans or phedges bave been provided to

thee board memnbars ar serice management of the Gooup,

Thi company hak agrepments sith Triten Advisers Limited and Tritan Investenent Managsanant Limited far caunseling ard sucoess fee related 1o tha
acquisibon of businesses respectively. Experses during 2024 were NOHE 2.4 milllon {2023: 2.5 millon).
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Mote 14 - Accounting principles

GLX Holding A% is a company incarporated and domiciled in Morway. GLY Holding &5 was establshed in 2007, with the purpase to own shares in
Glamea A%, Kronprinsesse Marthas plass 1, 0161 0500, The parent company ks Glace HoloCo AS. The ultimats parent of GLX Balding AS is Tritan Fungd
W, wehich is located at lersesy.

The firencial statements of the company comprise of statements of profit and loss, other comprebensive income, financial position, cash Aews.
changss m =quity, ard relafed notes. The financial stafements have been prepered naccordance with International Firendal Repartng Standards
|IFRE) a= adopted by The Eurcpean Unicn |EU). The financial statements have been prepared an a historical cost base, and the financial staternents
are prepared based on the going concern assumption, Material scoounting assessments and judpements, if amy, are explamed in relevant rotes,

. This file is sealed with a digital signature
i The seal is a guarantee for the authenticity
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Mote 15 - Changes in accounting policies

There are i changes in accounting pelicies which significantly affect current and future periods,
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Directors Responsibility Statement

The Board of Directors reviewed and approved the Board of Directors Report, the
integrated sustainability report, and the consolidated and annual financial statements for
GLX Holding AS as of 31 December 2024 (Annual Report 2024).

To the best of our knowledge;

- the consolidated financial statements and financial statement are prepared in accordance
with IFRS and IFRIC as adopted by the EU and additional Norwegian disclosure requirements in
the Norwegian Accounting act that were effective as of 31 December 2024,

- the consolidated and annual financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit as a whole as of 31 December 2024 for the Group and the
Parent Company.

- the Board of Directors Report for the Group and the Parent Company includes a true and fair
view of;

- the development and performance of the business and the position of the Group and
the Parent Company.

- the principal risks and uncertainties the Group and the Parent Company face.

Oslo, 29 April 2025

':UJL; it A it

Mikael Aro Hanna-Maria Heikkinen Ioachim Solbakken Espen
Chairman of the Board Board member Board member
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;runp.a: - Telephone +47 45 40 40 &L
kel vian Inlermet wears kgemg na
KPMG 0 ST e Enree 8 174870

To tha General Meeting of GLX Holding AS

Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of GLX Haolding AS, which comprisa:

+ [he financial statements of the parent company GLX Halding AS (the Company), which
comprige the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the statement of profit
and loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows for the year then endad, and nates to the financial statements, including material
accounting palicy information, and

«  the consolidated financial statements of GLX Holding AS and its subsidianes (the Group),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the
consolidated statament of profit and loss, consolidatad statemant of othar comprehensiva
incoma, consclidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy Information,

In our apinion
+ the financial statements comply with applicable statutory requirements,

« fthe financial statements give a frue and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at
3 December 2024, and it financial performance and Its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as adopted by the EU, and

« fthe consolidated financial statemants give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and its financial parformance and its cash flows for the yvear
then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as adopted by the EL.

Our opinion s consistent with our additional report o the Board of directors.

Basis for Opirion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intermational Standards on Auditing (1SAs). Our rb(gg cb
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the b‘ t'b
Audit of the Fimancial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company and t "\

Group as required by relevant laws and regulations in Norway and the Intermational Ethics Standa& *
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including G.J N
Intarnational Indepandance Standards) (IESBA Coda), and we hiave fulfilled aur othar athical E rl/
responsibilities in accordance with these requiremeants. We balieva that the audit avidance <0

of the KPAG plosal crganiration of ndependent mernter Calin |® & it
ara bk by puenaries B g e e s reed 17 y
Lt pries o]
Bodn i
“atEram =
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kPG

obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion.

Ta the best of cur knowledge and belief, no prohibited non-audit services referred to In the Audit
Regulation (537/2014) Article 5.1 have been provided.

We have been the auditor of GLX Holding AS for 8 years from the election by the general meeting of
the shareholders on 17 October 2017 for the accounting year 2017,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that. in our professional judgment, were of most gignificance in
our audit of the financial statements of the curent period, These matters were addressed in the
cantext of our awdit of the financial statements as a whale, and in farming our apinion thereon, and we

do nat pravide & separate opinion on thesa matiers.

1, Impairment assessment of Goodwill, Product development and Ofher intangible assels
Reforance is made fo section 10.7 Malerial accounting policies under impairment of nan-financial
aszsats, sechion 3.2 Goodwill and seclion 3.3 Product development and other infangible assels.

The Key Audit Matfer

How the maiter was addressed in our awdif

There is an inherent uncertainty related to the
assessment of whether future cash flows will be
sufficient to support the carrying valus of
goodwill, product devalopment and other
intangible assets.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group carries
MOK 1 834 million of goodwill ard NOK 1 030
millien of product development and other
intangible assets in the statement of financial
position. The total amount mainky relates o the
acquisition of Glamaox AS in 2017, The
ramaining elemants of goodwill ralates to
Glamox AS' acquisitions in 2018, 2019, 2021
and 2024,

Due to the skignificance of the carrying value and
rigk of non-recoverabdlity related to goodwill,
product development and other intangible
assets, impairment assessment is considered a
key audit matter. The recoverable amount is
basad on value in usa calculations. Tha key
judgments and estimatas applied by
management in the impairment testing wara:

s Determination of the level for performing
impairment test;

=  growth rate;

« future financial performance; and

»  discount rafe.

Ma significant impairment charges are
recognized in respect of goodwill, product
development and other intangible assets in
2024.

Our audit procedures in this area included:

*  @ssessing management's process and
results for determining the level for
performing impairment tasting to
evaluate whether the leval for which
impairment is tested is in accordance
with 1AS 36:

« evaluating the historical accuracy of
managament’s 2024 budgets and
ferecasls and challenging management
on the current year cash flow forecasts
as well as the timing of future cash
flows;

&« challenging managament on the growlh
assumptions and management’s fulure
business plan assumpticns with
reference to current market conditions;

& engaging KPMG valuation specialists to
assess the discount rales appled with
reference to market data;

« pbtaining and evaluating managemeant's
sansitivity analysis 1o detarmine the
impact al reasonably possible changes.
Performing our own independent
sensitivity calculations to quantify the
downside changes to management’s
maddels reguired to result in impairment,;
and

s assessing whether the disclosures
regarding key assumgptions and
sensitivities adequately reflected the
underlying asseats' impairmant
assessments.

Other Infarmation

in tha Board of Directors’ report and the othar information accompanying the financial sta
othar informaticn comprisas information in the annual report, bul does not include the @ci

The Board of Directors and the Managing Director (management) are responsible for the &%ﬁ?
b
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statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the information in the Board of Directors' report nor the other information accompanying the financial
statements.

In connection with our audit of the financial statemants, our responsibility is to read the Board of
Directors’ report and the other information accompanying the financial statements. Tha purposa is fo
cansider if thare is material inconsistency betweaen the Board of Directors” report and the other
information accompanying the financial statements and the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or whether the Board of Directors' report and the other information
accompanying the financial statements otherwise appears to be materially misstated. We are required
io report if there is @ material misstatement in the Board of Directors’ report or the other information
accompanying the financial ststements. We have nothing to repart in this regard.

Based on aur knowladge obtained in the audit, it is cur opinion that the Board of Directars’ report

« s consistent with the financial statements and
+ containg the information required by applicable statutory requirements.

Our opinicn on the Board of Direclors’ report applies correspondingly 1o the slatement on Corporate
Govermance.

Our apinion on whelher the Board of Direclors' report containg the information reguired by applicable
statutory requirements, does not cover the Sustainability Statement, on which a separate assurance
report is issued,

Responzibilites of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a trug and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as adopted by the EL, and for such intemal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material missiatement, whethar due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s and
the Group's ability to confinue as a gaing concarn, disclosing, as applicabla, matters related to gaing
cancerm and using the going cancern basis of accounting unless management aither intends to
liquidate the Group or o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenis

Owr objectives are 1o cbiain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes gur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Mizststements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
fhey could reasonably be expected to influance the economic decisions of usars takan on the basis of
thesa financial statameants.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional sceplicism throughout the audit. We also:

+ dentify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whather due

o fraud or error, We design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and -L‘,b
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The bt
risk of not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one ((3:.')
resulting from arror, as fraud may invalva collusion, forgary, intantional omissians, 0_-) 'Eb
misreprasentations, or the override of intarnal control. l\b‘ q;b

« obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit "\:'?‘
procedures that are appropriata in the circumstances, but nat for tha purposa of axpra anq’
apinion on the effectiveness of the Company's and the Group's internal contral. ?- <0

« evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablan qis]/
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accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« conclude on the appropriatenass of managemant's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exisis
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's and the
Group's ability to continue as a going concem, If we conclude that & material unceriainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial stataments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify cur apinion, Dur
conclusions are based on the audil evidence oblained up 1o the date of our auditor's raport.
Howeever, future events o condiions may cause the Company and the Group 1o cease o
continue as a going concern.

« evaluala the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whather the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves a true and fair view,

« oblain sufficiant appropriate audit evidance regarding tha financial infarmation of tha entities or
business activities within the Group 1o express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing af the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we idenfify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committes with a statement that we have complied with relevant athical
requiraments ragarding indepandence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
malters that may reasonably ba thought to baar on our indepandance, and where applicable, related
saleguards.

From tha matters communicated with the Board of Direclors, we delarmine those matters thatl weare of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matier should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interast benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on Compliance with Requirement on European Single Electronic Format (ESEF)

Opinion

Ag part of the audit of the financial statements of GLX Holding AS, we have performed an assurance
engagement to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements included in the
annual report, with the file name 549300UWOX4MGFRT5Y54-2024-12-31-0-2n zip, have baan
prepared, in all material respects, in compliance with the requirements of the Commission Delagated
Regulation (EU) 2019/815 on the European Single Elactronic Formal (ESEF Ragulation) and
regulation pursuant to Section 5-5 of the Norwegian Securities Trading Act, which includas

requirements related to the preparation of the annual report in XHTML formiat, and IXBRL tagging of -L‘,b
the consolidated financial statements. cbbt
In our opinion, the financial statemenis, included in the annual report, have been prepared, in all n_.(;j 'Eb
matenial respects, in compliance with the ESEF regulation t'b

Management's Responsibilites % .
Management is respansible for the preparation of the annuwal report in compliance with the ESEF(:') '\ :
regulation. This respansibility comprises an adequate procass and such internal contral as ?..

managament determines is necessary. <0
Auditar's Responsibilities '@0-*}‘[9%
YA
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Qur responsibility, based on audit evidence obiained, is fo express an opinion on whether, in all
material respects, the financial ststements included in the annual report have been preparad in
compliance with ESEF. We conduct our work in compliance with the International Standard for
Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000 - “Assurance engagemants ather than audits or reviews of
historcal financial information”. The standard requires us 1o plan and perform procadures o obtain

reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements included in the annual report have been
prepared in compliance with the ESEF Regulation.

Ag part of our work, we have performed procedures to oblain an understanding of the Company's
processes for preparing the financial statements in compliance with the ESEF Regulation. We
examine whether the financial siatements are presented in XHTML-format. We evaluate the
completenass and accuracy of the iXBRL tagging of the consolidated financial stataments and assess
managament's use of judgement. Our procedures include reconciliation of the IXBRL tagged data wilh
the avdited financial stalemants in human-readable formatl. We baleve thatl the evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion.

Qslo, 29 April 2025
KPMG A5

o Tondod
Stian Tarrestad
State Avthonsed Public Accountant
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To tha General Meeting of GLX Holding AS

Independent Sustainability Auditor's Limited Assurance Report

Limited Assurance Conclusion

We have conductad a limited assurance engagement on the consolidated sustainability statament
of GLX Holding AS (the «Companys), included in Sustainability section of the Board of Direclors'
report (the «Sustainability Statements), as at 31 December 2024 and for the year then ended.

Based on the proceduras we have performed and the evidenca we have oblained, nothing has come
o our attention that causes us to believe that the Sustainability Statement |s not prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with the Norsegian Accounting Act section 2-3, including:

« compliance with the European Sustainability Reporting Standards (ESRE). including that the:
process caried out by the Company to identify the information reported in the Sustainability
Statement (the «Procasss) is in accordance with the description sat cut in saction Impact, risk
and opportunity management - Materiality assessmant process, and

« compliance of the disclosures in the section EU Taxonomy af the Sustainability Statement with
Article 8 of EU Regulation 20200852 (the & Taxonomy Regulations).

Basis for Conclusian

We conductad our limited assurance engagement in accardance with International Standard an
Assurance Engagemeants (ISAE) 3000 (Revised), Assurance engagaments other than audits or
reviews of histoncal financial information («1SAE 3000 (Revised)s), issued by the Intematicnal
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board,

We baliave that the evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
conclusion. Our responsibilities under this standard are further described in the Sustainability Auditor's
Responsibilities section of our report,

Owr Independence and Quality Management

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirementis as reguired by relevant laws
and regulations in Morway and the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) isswed by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA Caode), which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, objectivity,

professional competence and due care, confidantiality and professional bahaviour. {-0
The firm applies International Standard on Quality Management 1, which reguires the firm to design, Qb‘
implemant and operata a systemn of guality management including policies or proceduras regarding (Q {b
compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory n_') "b

requirements. ]\b‘

The cemparative information included in the Sustainability Statement was not subject 1o an as
engagement. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Other Matter :’Q( r.\ .
¥
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KPMG
Responsibilities for the Sustainability Statement

The Board of Directors and the Managing Director (Management) are responsible for designing and
implementing a process to identify the information reported in the Sustainability Statement in
accordance with the ESRS and for disclosing this Process in section Impact, risk and oppartunity
managament - Materiality assessment process of tha Sustainability Statemeant. This responsibility
includes:

+ understanding the context in which the Group's activities and business relationships take
place and developing an understanding of its affected stakeholders;

s the identification of the actual and potential impacts (both negative and positive) related ta
sustainability matters, as well as rsks and opportunities that affect, or could reascnably be
expected to affect, the Group's financial position, financial perfformance, cash flows, access to
finance or cost of capital over the shert-, medium-, or long-term;

+  [he assessment of he matedality of the identified impacts, nsks and epporlunities related o
sustainability matters by selecting and applying appropriate thresholds; and

= making assumpfions that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Management is further responsible for the preparation of the Sustainability Statement, in accordance
with the Morwagian Accounting Act section 2-3, including:

« compliance wilh the ESRS;

= preparing the disclosures in the section EU Taxenomy of the Sustainability Statement, in
compliance with the Taxonomy Regulation;

« designing, implementing and maintaining such internal contral that Management determines is
necessary to enabla the preparation of the Sustainability Statament that is free from matarial
misstatement, whether due 1o fravd or arror, and

« the selection and application of appropriate sustainability reporting methods and making
assumptions and estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances,

Inherent limitations in preparing the Sustainability Statement

In reporting forward-looking information in accordance with ESRS, Management is required fo prepare
the forward-looking information on the basis of disclosed assumplions about events that may ocour in
the future and possibla fulure actions by the Group. Actual outcomes are likely o be different sinca
anticipated events frequently do nol oceur as expected,

Sustainabilily Auditor's Responsibilities

Our responsibility is 1o plan and perform the assurance engagement o oblain limited assurance about
whather the Sustainability Statement is free from material misstatamant, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue a limited assurance report that includes our conclusion. Misstatements can arise from

fraud ar error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expectad to influence decisions of users taken on the basis of the Sustainability Statement as a whole.

As part of a limited assurance engagement in accordance with |SAE 3000 (Revised) we exercise
prafessional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the engagement,

Qur responsibiliies in respect of the Sustainability Statement, in relation to the Process, include; b?_-(;j rb{b
N

« Qbtaining an understanding of the Process, but not for the purpose of providing a l:un:;lusm%

on the effectiveness of the Process, including the outcome of the Procass;

« Considering whether the infarmation identified addresses the applicable disclosure ?" (0
requirements of the ESRS; and (']/

{Q ‘”lz
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+ Designing and parforming procedures to evaluate whether the Process is consistent with the
Company's description of its Process set out in section Impact, risk and opporiunity
manageament - Matarialily assessment process.

Cur othar respansibilities in respect of the Sustainability Statement include:

¢ ldentifyving whera material misstatements are likely to arse, whether due to fraud or error; and

« Designing and performing procedures responsive to where material misstatements are likely
o arise in the Sustainability Statement. The risk of not detecting a matarial misstatemant
resulling from fraud is higher than for one rasulting from arror, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intermal control,
Summary ol he Work Parformed

A limited assurance engagement imvolves parforming procedures o oblain evidence aboul the
Sustainability Statement. The procedures in a limited assurance engagement vary in nature and timing
from, and are less in extent than for, a reasonable assurance engagemeant. Consequently, the level of
assurance abtained in a limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that
would have been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagemeant been performed.

The nature, timing and extent of procedures selected depend on professional judgement, including the
identification of disclosures where material misstatements are likely to arise in the Sustainahility
Staterment, whether due to fraud or error,
In conducting our limited assurance engagament, with respect to the Process, we:

« Obtainad an understanding of the Process by:

o performing inguirkes to understand the sources of the information used by
management (e.q., stakeholder engagement, business plans and strategy
documents); and

o reviewing the Company's internal documantation of its Procass; and

« Evaluated whether the evidence obtained from our procedures with respect to the Process
implemanted by the Company was consistent with the description of the Process set out
in section Impact, risk and opporfunity managemant - Matariality assessmant process.

In conducting our limited assurance engagement, with respect to the Sustainability Statement, wa:

« Obtainad an understanding of the Group's reporling processes relevant to the preparation of
itz Sustainability Statemant by:

o Obtaining an understanding of the Group's contral enviranment, processes, control
activities and infarmation system relevant to the preparation of the Sustainability
Statement, but not for the purpose of providing a conclusion on the effectivaness of
the Group's internal control; and

o Obtaining an understanding of the Group's risk assessment process;

#«  Evaluated whether the information idantified by the Procass is included in the Sustainability c:)

Statement: Gj {b
+ Evaluated whether the structure and the presentafion of the Sustainability Statement is in b?‘-) t'b
accordance with the ESRS; N

« Perormed inguines of relevant personnel and analytical procedures on selected infcnnrn@ in h"' ’
the Sustainability Statemant;

Yo
« Performed substantive assurance procedures on selected information in the Sg@h-t'p-@ﬂ/
oA
P
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Statement;

« ‘\Whare applicable, compared disclosuras in the Sustainability Statemeant with the
corresponding disclosures in the financial statements and other sections of the Board of
Directors' report;

+« [Evaluated tha methods, assumptions and data for developing estimates and forward-looking
information;

«  Obtainad an understanding of the Company’s process to identify taxoncmy-eligible and
taxonomy-aligned economic activities and the cormesponding disclosures in the Sustainability
Statement;

«  Evaluated whether information about the identified taxonomy-eligible and taxonomy-aligned
aconamic activities is included in the Sustainability Statarment; and

« Performed inguines of relevant personnel, analytical procedures and substantive proceduras
an selected taxonomy disclosures included in the Sustainability Statement.

Qslo, 29 April 2025
KPMG AS

1y
Stian Terestad
State Authorised Public Accountant — Sustainability Auwditor
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